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Client Testimonial - Alina Shafig

“When | first started making these turbans, | used to work for someone else who used to provide me the
materials. | was paid for my labor and a chunk of the profits went to the middleman. After a few years, |
realized that | could set up my own business and | approached Kashf for a loan. Since then, | have been buying
the raw materials myself and selling directly to the market. Through successive loans, | have been able to
grow my income and business manifold. This has helped me settle my children and build my own house. |
have also been able to create jobs at the community level by employing other women to work in my
business.”
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Client Testimonial - Marina Khan

“I have been running a small school for almost a decade using informal credit from my family and friends. |
had invested a lot in a new building and was prepared for additional student strength when Covid 19 hit
Pakistan. Mere days after the new classes started there was a lockdown on schools and slowly student
strength and fees dwindled. At this juncture, | tried to get a loan for the school, out of all possible options,
Kashf was most appealing due to lesser documentation, good staff behavior, and easy loan eligibility
requirements.The loan helped me to sustain my school and today my school is doing better than it ever has.
The training for myself and teachers which was part of the loan package was also very helpful”.




About Kashf Foundation

Kashf Foundation is registered as a Non-Banking Micro Finance
Company regulated by the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan. Kashf was set up in 1996 as the first specialized
microfinance institution of Pakistan. Over the years, Kashf has
successfully carved out a distinct and unique niche for itself in the
microfinance sector by offering a suite of holistic, innovative, and
transformative products and services to low-income households
especially women. Kashf offers credit appraisal-backed individual
loans to its clients along with other non-financial services to have a
transformative impact at the household level, thus ensuring clients
are able to build a strong credit history. Kashf believes in creating an
enabling environment for women micro-entrepreneurs and is
committed to creating products and services driven by client needs
and demands which leverage on lessons from successful models
from across the world.

Kashf’s main spheres of intervention include:
(I) Financial Services

(2) Insurance and Safety Nets

(3) Capacity Building Trainings

(4) Social Advocacy Interventions

Financial " Insurance &  Capacity Building ~ Social Advocacy
Services Safety Nets Trainings Interventions

* Business Loans * Credit for Life * Financial Education * Social Theatre
* Loans for Emergency Insurance Trainings * Television Dramas
Needs * Comprehensive * Business Development » Gender Sensitization
* Livestock Loans Inpatient Health Trainings Workshops
* Shariah Compliant Insurance * Vocational Skills * Public Awareness
Loans * Hospital Cash Health Trainings Campaigns
* Business Rehabilitation Insurance * Maternal and
Loans * Livestock Insurance Reproductive Health
Trainings




Vision
Financial services for all in a poverty free and
gender equitable society.

Mission
Serving all with dignity by providing high quality and sustainable
microfinance services to low-income families and
micro-entrepreneurs to enhance financial capabilities, alleviate
household poverty and enable all, especially women, to become
active agents of social and economic change.




Core Values
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Commitment to
service with integrity
and responsibility

Commitment to
innovation in products
and processes

Commitment to
transparency and
fiduciary responsibility

Commitment to
merit, diversity, dignity
of all, and team-work

Commitment to
institutional and client
level sustainability

Commitment to social
and environmental
responsibility
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Geographical Outreach

Kashf Foundation currently operates in 37 districts of Punjab, 17 districts in Sindh, 8 districts in KPK
and | district in Balochistan through a network of 325 branches.




Chairperson’'s Message

Dear Friends and Supporters of Kashf,

Economic and political events in the past year have unfortunately further disadvantaged low-income households and
women who have borne the brunt of the economic contraction caused by high inflation especially food inflation and
rising costs of fuel and more recently by the devastating floods. During such times, the mandate of an organization
such as Kashf Foundation becomes even more important. Cash strapped households need investment into their
businesses and also require support with cash-flows. Consequently, Kashf has worked on diversifying its product
offerings and is offering many different kinds of loan products. Under the leadership of the competent management,
Kashf has managed to add to the economic opportunities available to thousands of women this year.

| am happy to note that despite the extremely difficult economic conditions over this year Kashf has been able to
deliver on all financial and operational benchmarks; closing the year with 100% target achievement on all KPIs and
an Operational Self Sustainability ratio of 134%, a Financial Self Sustainability ratio of 105% and disbursement of
692,463 loans worth PKR 34.45 billion. Kashf has also added 16 new branches to its outreach and been able to
foster both financial inclusion and financial deepening to transform lives of low-income women entrepreneurs.

This year marks Kashf Foundation’s 25th year anniversary and | and the Directors would like to congratulate all
Kashf staff on this momentous milestone. | wish them success in coming years and encourage them to continue to
add to their legacy through expanding to new geographic territories, introducing new products and services that are
underwritten by a good credit policy, maintaining and fostering new relationships with funders, and continuing to
keep clients at the center of their work.

In the end | would like to thank all our partners, funders, donors, the Board of Directors and the Kashf Management
team for their hard work and effort in sustaining the Kashf mission.

Regards,
Dr. Hafiz A. Pasha

Chairperson
Board of Directors
Kashf Foundation
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Managing Director's Message

Dear Friends of Kashf,

Against a backdrop of rising inflation, the devastating aftermath of flooding, and instability caused by political flux and
economic contraction, it is easy to have a pessimistic outlook on the future, but instead of feeling defeated | choose
to focus on the positives. C.S Lewis once wrote “hardships often prepare ordinary people for an extraordinary
destiny” and in the past two years, Kashf staff and clients have shown extraordinary resolve to turn crises into
opportunities. With client preferences and responsible finance as the guiding lights, Kashf has used technology, new
products, improved processes and appropriate risk underwriting mechanisms to reach out to hundreds of
thousands of low-income women in the last year. The developments in digitalization in Pakistan have led to new
opportunities, which allowed Kashf to open over 90,000 mobile accounts for its female clientele, thus demonstrating
that the digital gender divide can be overcome through consistent efforts. Despite the myriad challenges, we have
closed the year with an active clientele of 592,460 and an outstanding portfolio of PKR 20 Billion.

This year marks Kashf’s 25 year anniversary - a milestone that merits jubilation and celebration. In this special
edition of our Annual Report, we share some of the key lessons from Kashf’s twenty five year journey. When |
started Kashf, there were many that challenged the idea of microfinance for women. But today, due to the work of
Kashf and other players in the sector, the business case and impact of women centered microfinance has been
demonstrated successfully. Kashf has contributed to creating economic opportunities through millions of loans for
its clients. Kashf’s journey has been extraordinary and | am very proud of what we have been able to achieve.

Kashf’s success is based on the hundreds and thousands of micro-entrepreneurs that work tirelessly to build a
better future for their families. On a recent field visit to Choa Saidan Shah | was touched by my conversation with
a client running a small store which stocked clothes, cosmetics, laces, buttons and other sundry items. Baji Shumaila
shared that while her husband’s income is enough to cover household expenses and basic education for their 4
daughters, Shumaila wants her daughters to go to the best schools and colleges. Through a loan from Kashf she was
able to set up a shop which enables her to fund her eldest daughter’s college education and save money for
educating the other 3 daughters. Shumaila told me that better education will open up doors to a better future for
her daughters.

| would like to take this opportunity to thank Kashf’s Board of Directors for their guidance, Kashf’s staff for
theirhard work and resilience, and Kashf clients for their inspirational resolve. | would also like to thank the
international and local lenders that have supported our work and enabled Kashf to expand to new horizons.

Best Regards,
Roshaneh Zafar

Managing Director
Kashf Foundation
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Board of Directors

Occupation: Retired Civil Servant and Economist
R Dr.Hafiz A. Pasha is a retired civil servant and a leading economist with a PhD in Economics from Stanford University,
'ﬂﬁ 5{ and an M.A in Economics from University of Cambridge, U.K. He has held many notable national and international
| r?,,.\ appointments including Advisor to the Prime Minister, Federal Minister for Finance and Economic Affairs, Founder
L ey Chairman of the Pakistan Poverty Alleviation Fund,Vice Chancellor/President of University of Karachi, Director of
. | the Institute of Business Administration, Assistant Administrator at the UNDP, Regional Director of Bureau for Asia
W‘ and the Pacific for the UNDP, Member Board of Governors for the World Bank, and Managing Director at the
A

o \ Institute of Public Policy (IPP).

Dr. Hafiz A. Pasha

Non Executive Director

Occupation: Gender Specialist

Ms. Rabia Khan is a lawyer by profession and also holds a Masters Degree in Public Policy and Management from the
Carnegie Mellon University, USA. Ms. Khan has worked in the field of Gender and Development for many years with
the Canadian International Development Agency (CIDA) and has also worked with the International Union for the
Conservation of Nature (IUCN) on Sustainable Development. Ms. Khan is based in Karachi, she retired from
Development Consulting in 2018 and currently co-manages an organic farm which includes production, marketing,
and sales of organic produce. Since 2004 Ms. Khan has served as Director of Kaarvan Crafts Foundation, Lahore.

Ms. Rabia Khan

Non Executive Director

Occupation: Chief Executive Officer Abacus Consulting

Ms. Fatima Asad Khan is an integral member of the top leadership at Abacus Consulting. Ms. Khan’s professional
experience of over 24 years embodies thought leadership and delivering progressive solutions in Corporate
Governance, Digital Transformation, Strategic Change, Human Capital Management, Enterprise Technology Solutions,
and project leadership across multiple sectors and industries. An MBA graduate from LUMS, she started her career
with Coopers & Lybrand International and then PricewaterhouseCoopers. Her leadership journey includes serving
on various Boards as an independent director such as Lahore University of Management Sciences (LUMS), Faysal
Bank, Kashf Foundation, Bata Pakistan, Abacus Consulting Technology (Private) Limited, Abacus ELS Pvt limited,
Abacus Consulting (Private) Limited, Kaarvan Crafts Foundation and is also a member of YPO International and YPO
Indus Chapter. She holds a Corporate Director Certification from Harvard Business School and is a member of the
Harvard Corporate Directors, Diversity and Inclusion Hub Leadership Council, and Women Executives on Boards

Ms. Fatima Asad Khan  torums.
Non Executive Director

Occupation: Managing Director, Lightstone Publishers Pvt Limited

Ms. Ameena Saiyid is the Founder and Director of the Adab Festival and Founder and Managing Director of
Lightstone Publishers (Pvt) Ltd in Pakistan. She served as the Managing Director of the Oxford University Press
for 30 years, becoming the first woman in Pakistan to do so. In 2005, she became the first Pakistani woman to be
awarded the Order of the British Empire for her services to women’s rights, education, and intellectual property
rights in Pakistan, and to Anglo-Pakistan relations. In 2018, she was awarded Sitara-e-Imtiaz by the President of
Pakistan. She has held many notable positions including Secretary General of the Jinnah Society, Board Member of
Habib University Foundation, Board Member of the Institute of Art and Culture, Lahore, President of the Overseas
Investors’ Chamber of Commerce and Industry, and Member of the federal education minister’s Search
Committee for the selection of scholars on Pakistan. Ms. Saiyid is also Trustee of the Vicky Noon Education

feizadey, BLE Ms. Ameena Saiyid
Non Executive Director

Occupation: Chartered Accountant

Mr.Arif Masud Mirza is a Chartered Accountant by profession and the Regional Head of Policy for ACCA MENASA
(Middle East North Africa and South Asia) of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants since 2014. Mr.
Masud has headed senior positions at various organizations; he was the Country Head of ACCA Pakistan of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and Manager Finance & company secretary at First International
Investment Bank Ltd. He has rich experience as a technical advisor with Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) South
Asia Advisory, Group, and Multi-stakeholder Steering Committee looking at initiating UN SDGs in companies,
Technical advisor on the International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) Professional Accountancy Organization
Development Committee (PAODC), Editorial Board of Accountancy Futures ACCA'’s international journal for
business leaders, Editor of Policy and Insights Commentary ACCA’s the Middle East, North Africa, and South Asia
MENASA e-journal.

Mr. Arif Masud Mirza

Non Executive Director
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Occupation: Associate Professor, Economics, LUMS

Dr. Cheema holds a PhD in Economics from the University of Cambridge, U.K. He has remained associated with the
Lahore University of Management Sciences (LUMS) as Associate Professor in Economics and Political Science since
2008. In addition, some of Dr. Cheema’s notable professional affiliations include his positions as Director at the
Mahbub ul Haq Resource Center, Member of the Board of Trustees at the Institute of Development Studies Sussex
U.K., Member of the Rhodes Scholarship Selection Committee, Member of the Board at the Punjab Population
Innovation Fund and Member of the Board at the International Growth Centre (IGC). He has also served as a
technical member of the Government of Punjab’s Working Group on Smart-Testing and Smart-Containment of the
COVID-19 outbreak. Dr. Cheema has been awarded with numerous honors, awards, and fellowships including
Harvard South Asia Initiative Fellow, the Cambridge Commonwealth Trust Bursary, and The Cambridge Journal of
Dr.Ali Cheema Economics Political Economy Society Fund Award. He is also a serving director of the State Bank of Pakistan.

Non Executive Director

Occupation: Consultant, Climate Change Specialist

Dr. Mehjabeen Abidi-Habib is a social ecologist and scholar of institutional innovations that change society
based on social context, leadership, and adaptation in law and policy. Dr. Abidi-Habib has a PhD in Resilience
from the Government College University Lahore, with a fellowship with the University of Oxford. The
research emanating from this PhD was awarded the International 2007 Science and Society Award by the
Resilience Alliance. Dr. Abidi-Habib has served on the Board of Directors of the Lahore Museum, Lahore
Waste Management Company, Soan Valley Development Program, and the Lahore Zoo Advisory Committee.
She has also served on the National Steering Committee on REDD+, and been an Advisor to the Pakistan

Girl Guides Association. Dr. Mehjabeen A. Habib
Non Executive Director

Occupation: Principal of Kinnaird College for Women

Prof. Dr. Rukhsana David has been serving as Principal of the prestigious Kinnaird College for Women Lahore since
2010. Dr. David’s notable teaching career also includes being the Head of the Fine Arts Department at Kinnaird
College, an Assistant Professorship at the College of Art and Architecture at Al-Khair University Lahore, and a
Lecturer for the Fine Arts Department at the University of Punjab. Dr. David serves as a Member of multiple Boards
such as the University of Punjab, Lahore College for Women University, and International Council of Museums. Dr.
David holds a PhD in the History of Art from the Lahore College for Women University, Lahore, as well as a Master
in Fine Arts from the University of Punjab where she was also awarded a Gold Medal in Graphic Design.

Rukhsana David

Non Executive Director

Occupation: Independent Development Consultant

Ms. Maliha Hamid Hussein works as an independent development consultant with a broad range of
development experience in diverse sectors. Ms. Hussein has extensive experience of working with all the
major multilateral and bilateral agencies including the World Bank, the Asian Development Bank, and the
United Nations Development Program. She has also been career diplomat with the Pakistan Foreign Service
(1978-82). She currently serves as a Director of Sahil and previously held directorships in Pakistan Poverty
Alleviation Fund and Enterprise & Development Consulting (Pvt.) Limited. Ms. Hussein obtained her M.Sc. in
agricultural economics from Michigan State University and a certificate in international law, economics and

olitics from Oxford University, UK. N .
g ) Ms. Maliha H. Hussein
Non Executive Director

Occupation: Fintech Expert

Ms. Sadia Khan is a seasoned fintech executive with over twenty years of industry experience, 12 of which have been
in C-suite roles with the last appointment being CEO of AutoSoft Dynamics. She has led several successful core
banking and lending system migrations (Faysal Bank, Al Baraka Bank, Sindh Bank, PMRC), mobile wallet
implementations (Finca Microfinance Bank,Allied Bank), and treasury system installations (Bank of Punjab, National
Bank of Pakistan, Askari Bank). Before joining AutoSoft Ms. Khan worked with Deutsche Bank New York, NY. Ms.
Khan completed her Bachelors in Computer Science from Rutgers, The State University of New Jersey. She is
currently also a member of Board of Naseeb Online Services (Pvt.) Ltd.

A !

Ms. Sadia Khan

Non Executive Director
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Social Performance Dashboard
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Portfolio Segmentation

Male Transgender Male Led Joint House Hold Urban Semi Urban
0.27% 0.004% Business Business Consumption Loan 37% 29%
22% 3% 8% ‘
Female Female Led Oness Rural
99.7% Business 75% Loan 92% 34%
Gender Loan Utilization Product Type Geographic

Customer Care

Client Satisfaction Customer Complaint Statistics

Clients satisfied with customer care (N
£
N o5 w UM

Clients satisfied with delivery channel hecaived Retalved ResollHE]

G o7 18130 18130 100%

Clients understand the pricing

Net Promoter Score
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Kashf Kashf Kashf
Easy Loan Murabaha Maweshi Karza
36% 64% 61%
Gender Diversity Digital Financial Inclusion
Mobile
Wallets 116,157 Women
Staff Gender Ratio Mobile Wallets

Disbursements PKR 5.564 Billion

Staff Reporting to Female

Manager




Client Testimonial - Tehmina Khan

“When my mother was single-handedly raising me and my brother — she acted as both our mother and my
father, instilling in us the courage to break the gender stereotypes that plague our community. Things were
going okay for us when we were besought by a tragedy — the tragic and untimely passing of my brother. My
brother’s death made it clearer to me that | had to become a financial contributor to my household. |
worked with my mother on her multiple small businesses including the sale of second-hand clothes, cleaning
sofas in other people’s houses, and even setting up a cart selling fruits and vegetables. | learned how to drive
a motorcycle and used my brother’s tattered motorcycle for taking my mother to the market. | felt free and
empowered when | was on the motorcycle. On my mother’s advice, who has been a long-term client of
Kashf Foundation, | took a loan to buy a new motorcycle. Today, | am registered with a leading ride-hailing
app and earn a reasonable income monthly. A lot of women in our community have started using the
ride-hailing bike option as they know | will be their driver. | have big dreams for myself and with Kashf’s
support | intend on making these dreams a reality.”




Year-on-Year Operational Performance

Kashf Foundation closed June 2022 with 592,460 active clients denoting an 8% increase in terms of outreach compared
to June 2021.In terms of the amount disbursed, Kashf made disbursements amounting to PKR 34.45 billion in this year
compared to PKR 26.86 billion in the previous year which is a year-on-year growth of 28%.The average disbursement
size for Kashf loans for the year was PKR 55,703. In terms of products, Kashf disbursed 422,747 Kashf Karobar Loans,
23,656 Kashf Murabaha, 104,342 Kashf Easy Loans and 40,371 Kashf Maweshi Karza loans. The Kashf Karobar Karza
continues to be the main lending product for the Foundation with disbursements exceeding PKR 26.16 billion.

LOANS DISBURSED
July 21 - June 22

General Business Loan - Kashf Karobar Karza 422,747
Shariah Compliant Product - Kashf Murabaha 23,656
Livestock Loan - Kashf Maweshi Karza 40,371
School Finance Program - Kashf School Sarmaya 1,426
Consumption Loan - Kashf Easy Loan 104,342
Recapitalization Loan - Kashf Bahali Karza 3,016
Top-up Consumption Loan - Kashf Sahulat Karza 73,931
Consumption Loan - Kashf Fori Karza 22,974

692,463

With respect to insurance, Kashf Foundation continued to be the market leader in the provision of micro-insurance
in Pakistan with 37.3 % of the market share of the total policy holders in Pakistan. Kashf has provided over 3.17 million
insurance policies under both life and health insurance in this year. With respect to the total sum insured across
Pakistan, Kashf also holds the market share at 25.8 % with a monetary value of PKR 93.18 billion.

Year on-Year Financial Performance

In this year, Kashf’s operational self-sufficiency increased to 134% from [15% in June 2021, while the financial
self-sufficiency also increased to 105.44% from 104.66% in June 2021.The Return on Asset (ROA), Return on Equity
(ROE), and Debt to Equity Ratio have also been maintained within acceptable benchmarks i.e. at 6.75%, 30.89% and
76:24 respectively. Moreover, the administrative efficiency ratio has remained stable despite the increased operating
costs associated with inflation and fuel prices. This signifies that Kashf has capitalized on improved processes and
procedures and undertaken efficient resource planning to maintain sound financial health despite difficult economic
and operational circumstances.

Operational Self Sufficiency 134% [15%
Financial Self Sufficiency 105% 105%
Adjusted Return on Assets 6.75% 3.10%
Adjusted Return on Equity 30.89% 15.88%
Debt-Equity Ratio 76:24 78:22
Administrative Efficiency 15.79% 16.21%
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Client Testimonial - Fauzia Khalid

“l am very proud of this small shop that | am standing at right now but getting here has been a long journey
— my married life did not start as | had imagined. Within a few months, | realized that my husband would not
be able to provide for us.That’s when | began a small business of selling home-cooked meals to the nearby
hostel.The small venture became very successful but | needed to increase its scale to provide for our growing
family. That is when | approached Kashf for a loan. Through the loan, | was able to buy larger pots and pans
and fund the working capital needs of raw materials and gas bills. | also set up a portable cart in the market
along with continuing my hostel food supply business. Through my hard work, support from Kashf, and the
grace of Allah | have been able to provide for all the needs of my family. | was able to educate my children,
settle them in their marriages, and also build a small house. | am eager to expand this small shop into a
restaurant through the continued support from Kashf.”




Kashf's Human Resource Dashboard
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workplace to its employees. Inclusion
and diversity are key priorities for Kashf  Total Field Staff 2775 2521
and the organization focuses on creating  Qperations and Administrative staff 2870 2621

and upholding a distinctive culture which
derives from Kashf’s core values of
integrity, responsibility, dignity,innovation, ~ Yearly Turnover 14% 14%
responsiveness, and sustainability.

Based on the premise that embracing diversity is pivotal for a company’s success, Kashf’s human resource policies value
and promote diversity. In this year, Kashf’s operational and administrative staff base was 2,870.The table shows the key
human resources numbers for the year.

Staff Gender Ratio 51% 50%

Gender is a key focus for Kashf, and even though
Pakistan’s female labor force participation rate is a
mere 20.16%, Kashf has a 50% gender ratio in its staff
base. Kashf has been able to maintain gender diversity
via specialized programs at multiple levels which start
from the policies in place at the level of recruitment
and extends throughout the course of employment
with Kashf. The table below shows the Gender Ratio
across the field tiers.

Percentage

Female
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Kashf’s 25

As Kashf completes 25 years, we have collated some of the lessons learnt along the way. These lessons

The Big Picture Mission is Pivotal
The starting point and the North Star for
Kashf has been our core vision and
institutional mission. As an institution, the
single most important lesson from Kashf’s
success (and that of others) has been
ensuring that the Big Picture Mission is not
just restricted to incorporation documents
but is a living and breathing reality for all
involved with the company. Whenever we
approach a new idea, a product, a
partnership, or any change the first
question we ask ourselves is whether it is a
fit with our mission.We only proceed if the
answer to this pivotal question is a
resounding yes. This has helped us in
avoiding mission drift and remaining
focused on serving our core stakeholders
in a meaningful and comprehensive
manner.

Understand and Question Your owhn
Assumptions — Companies run the risk of getting
straitjacketed via the biases and assumptions of the
leadership. Having a diverse management team and a
focused and competent board of directors has ensured
that we are questioning our own assumptions and
theory of change.This has helped Kashf remain relevant
whilst remaining mission driven and client focused.

Relationships Matter Most — We have learned
that whether during business as usual or in times of
stress what matters most is having strong relationships
with our stakeholders. Relationships that are based on
transparency and integrity pave the way for trust. Over
the years, Kashf has been able to make changes to its
lending methodology and processes which have been
unequivocally accepted by clients due to their high
levels of trust in Kashf. Similarly, Kashf’s lenders have
always been kept abreast about developments on
endogenous and exogenous risks and these have been
accommodated through positive-sum changes to
enable Kashf to meet the needs of its clients.

Listen to the Clients — Perhaps, the second most important
lesson we have learned is that success will only come if the needs and
aspirations of the clients are kept at the center. Whether it is Kashf’s
products, processes, monitoring, screening, or evaluations the biggest
contributor to success has been keeping the client’s voice at the core.
To remain customer focused, Kashf undertakes annual customer
satisfaction surveys which are supplemented by ensuring field
presence and client interaction for all staff cadres. Ve have also been
engaging with third party research firms to measure and monitor
impact and identify areas of improvement.




Year Journey

serve as guides for Kashf and the intention of sharing them is that others may also learn from our journey.

Know Institutional Limitations — This has by far
been one of the most important lessons emanating from
the past twenty five years. If an organization does not
articulate or understand its boundaries, it will ultimately
spread itself too thin and end up becoming a jack of all
trades master of none. Given the fact that Kashf has
always tried to remain true to its mission, knowing about
your limitations enables you to make decisions that will
have a positive impact on your business, your staff and
your clients. Sometimes, saying “no” is considered to be a
defeatist approach, but in reality applied knowledge is
power as it will enable you to think out of the box and
define strategies that are built on the strengths and
competencies of the institution. Undoubtedly, from a
transformational perspective scale and outreach matters,
but positioning the organization as a women focused
financial institution, that invests in women’s lives is
equally significant. Stopping to take stock of internal
limitations at each phase of the organization’s

development is simply being smart.

Measure Gender Diversity - This
would sound odd coming from an
organization who’s raison d’etre is the
economic empowerment of women. It
would seem that given Kashf’s mission the
achievement of gender diversity would
happen automatically. However, it isn’t that
simple, as gender inclusion at all levels
involves a mindset reboot, which cannot be
achieved unless gender benchmarks are
included across all institutional level goals.
Transparency in measuring and monitoring
such goals is equally important. As a first
step, measuring the percentage of women
clients is of course necessary but at the
next level it is also important to determine
what percentage of the loans were actually
used by women led businesses directly. In
fact to succeed as a women centric financial
services provider continuously re-assessing
goals and metrics becomes an important
strategy of success.

Building Leaders is Key - At one level this lesson sounds like a
no brainer, especially in the context of an organization that is working
for the betterment of low income households. In fact the notion of
sustainable development is predicated on empowering local
communities and staff through leadership opportunities. Many times
organizations fall into the patriarchal trap by assuming that they know
best, thus inadvertently by-passing possibilities for collaboration and
growth. Building and sustaining opportunities for collaborative
leadership has been an important focus for Kashf for not only does it
allow for transference of local knowledge but it also enables the
identification and nurturing of high potential leaders.




Focus on both Financial
Inclusion and Deepening
Another key success factor has been
Kashf’s two pronged approach for
market penetration. Kashf focuses on
both financial inclusion and financial
deepening. In new markets, where
microfinance services are nascent,
Kashf focuses on inclusion and opens
branches wherein a majority of clients
are first time users of microfinance. At
the same time, Kashf also works at
developing new products and services
to meet the needs of more mature
clients in developed microfinance
markets. This dual approach provides
m Kashf with the tools to better serve

the financial needs of women at the
&L Iﬂ bottom of the pyramid.

Promote Evidence Based
Learning — We have learned
that programs have a higher
chance of being successful when
features and processes are
backed by relevant evidence. For
this purpose, at Kashf, since the
beginning we have had a
dedicated research and
development team. The research
team at Kashf is responsible for
undertaking client centric
research to develop new
programs, on-course existing
programs, and improve existing
processes.

Growth must be Measured and
Organic - We have learnt that
growth should be well planned and
undertaken after proper scoping of
potential and risks. Moreover, growth
should be aligned with the
organizations ability to arrange the
required staff for the new locations in
a manner that performance in existing
locations is not impacted. Rapidly
scaling without ensuring readiness at
all levels can backfire. Kashf’s growth
trajectory has thus been organic and
measured to make sure additions in
the branches are properly managed
with each branch having trained and
certified staff that lays the proper
foundation in terms of client selection
for the years to come.

Constantly On-course to the Mission — Being a mission
driven organization, an integral part of Kashf’s success has been the
ability to focus on our objectives and goals and to not be wavered by
the ‘in’ trends of financial inclusion. Our approach to change and
innovation is to first understand how the innovation will impact the
lives of our customers and then try to adapt it for our business. For
example Kashf’s approach to digitalization was first and foremost to
see how it could be leveraged on the back end to create efficiencies in
processes which could be passed on to the clients. This included end
to end digitalization of the loan formation and disbursement and use of
Al based credit scoring models to improve turnaround time. The
second step was to understand where Kashf could piggy back off
existing infrastructure and expertise to present client facing solutions
such as mobile wallet disbursements. This approach has helped Kashf
avoid mission drift whilst improving client experience via technology.




Failures are Learning
Opportunities — Kashf has never
been shy of innovation and one of the
most important lessons from this has
been that the organization will never
know what works best without trying
it out. However, at Kashf when we try
out new things we meticulously
record both the successes and failures.

People are as Important as
the Results — As an institution
we have learnt to keep our focus
on nurturing and growing our
staff members. Providing for their
life cycle needs, diverse career
aspirations, and up-skilling needs
have been a major focus for the
organization. There is also a rigid

In the case of the former, these defense of our institutional
researches and learning provide the
blue print for scaling up and
massification. While in the case of
failures, the findings provide Kashf
with invaluable lessons on how to
improve on the programs in the future
and what to avoid. This has helped
Kashf remain on the cutting edge of

innovation.

culture and values to ensure that
the focus at any level is not just
on the results but the process
followed to achieve the end
result.

Balance Impact with
Sustainability - As an organization
grows from an organic level to scale, an
important parameter to consider is the
balancing of impact and transformation
with the sustainability of the organization.
This particular challenge was extremely
important as Kashf was the first
microfinance institution that was not only
specialized but offered products and
services to women from low income
communities, at the time when only 0%
of funds were disbursed to females. The
onus was to not only demonstrate that
women are good credit risk but also that
micro female entrepreneurs were a good
business investment.  This particular
approach continues to be the litmus test
for any products or services that the
Foundation continues to provide its
clients.

i
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Invest in the Entrepreneurship Value Chain - As an
organization Kashf continues to learn from its peers, particularly the
ones that have been able to demonstrate impact on women’s
economic lives. The overarching design of all of Kashf’s interventions
rests on reducing the financial challenges that women entrepreneurs
along with investing in their inherent capacity through well designed
and relevant trainings. The key lesson that has emerged in designing
such interventions is to make them adaptable and flexible to women’s
time requirements and ensuring that the training materials and content
are driven from local contexts. Continuously gauging the impact of the
trainings to improve overall methodology design is another very
important feature of all capacity building initiatives, while embedding
this within all financial products is key.
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Celebrate Achievements —VWhen Roger Bannister set out to achieve the
four minute mile in 1954 he faced a number of nay sayers. However, that did
not deter him and he achieved what had hitherto been considered impossible.
Kashf has also been the Bannister for women’s economic empowerment in
Pakistan and has achieved many firsts which need to be celebrated. It was the
first organization in Pakistan to become financially sustainable in 2003, thus
proving the business case for women’s financial inclusion. It was also the first
organization to develop a micro credit for life insurance product for low
income families, which led to many other insurance products like health,
livestock etc. It was the first organization in Pakistan to issue a term finance
certificate in 2007, which allowed the second tier markets to consider women
micro-entrepreneurs as investable assets. Realizing the importance of private
media, Kashf was the first MFl to sponsor and produce drama serials on
mainstream TV channels to promote women’s economic empowerment in
2012. Continuing on its pioneering role, Kashf was also the one of the first
organizations to fund low cost private schools through its education finance
program for which it also received the European MF award in 2016. Given the
important role of women in the livestock sector, Kashf has also been an
innovator when it comes to offering a specialized livestock product for women
livestock producers which has livestock insurance as well. During the Covid
crisis, Kashf was one of the first entities to conduct on going live research on
the impact of Covid on its clients and subsequently was the first organization
to offer mass rescheduling to all of its clients, thus leading to over 95% of its
clients remaining credible post Covid.

Don't let a Crisis go to Waste - In the past twenty-five years,
like any other organization, Kashf has seen and survived many a crisis.
A crisis forces you to look for some silver linings in its midst and to
seek opportunities where they may not have been before. The first
crisis that Kashf faced in its young life was funding in order to scale up
its growth. It was a catch 22 situation as most investors wanted
sustainability as the first benchmark for investment and sustainability
could only happen post scale. The funding crisis led the management to
adopt better financial practices and systems, which ultimately
encouraged donors to invest in the organization.The second and the
bigger existential crisis happened in 2008, when massive delinquency
took place across Kashf’s network.Taking stock of the situation Kashf’s
management quickly revised its lending methodology and products,
and actually came out stronger post the crisis.

Y




Don't Fall Back on Your Laurels — Complacency can open up the
organization to the risk of losing out to its competitors and can also affect the
morale of the staff. Kashf has always been an organization that has tried to keep
its promises and meet its goals, and sometimes a culture of achievement can be
a reason for the organization to stop looking at its competitors. However, to
combat this pitfall the organization has always promoted a learning approach
and undertaken research on best practices of its competition in order to
strengthen its own product offerings. The same goes for when clients wanted
to move from group lending to individual lending and despite this being a path
shattering move, the institution managed to remain relevant to its clients by
making such a big change.

You can’t Do it Alone —The days of command and control approaches are
far gone, however, it is surprising how many organizations still continue with
such an approach. Today organizations are faced by rapidly changing
environments, the Covid pandemic being a case in point. A key realization was
the understanding that the multiple business challenges emanating from Covid
could not be be solved by one individual alone. It is important to develop a
culture where a cacophony of voices, of opinions, of perspectives, is seen as
positive way to resolve key issues and question underlying assumptions. Many
a times disruptions lead to new opportunities.

Continously Raise the Bar — Kashf was initiated as a small action
research program in 3 semi-urban communities outside Lahore. The
first strategic plan was drafted for the organization in its first nine
months of existence with a clear goal that the organization would
achieve financial sustainability within the first five years post the action
research phase. Essentially, this was the primary challenge the
organization set for itself that an MF| targeting women micro
entrepreneurs could be sustainable in Pakistan’s context. However, at
the same time it is important to identify the next big challenge so that
innovation can be spurred across the entity and as a result institutional
capacity can be further strengthened. Essentially bar-raising is about
continuously testing the insights into your own organization and
validating and improving end results. Raising the bar also allows the
organization to embrace and pursue the unknown by ensuring that
institutional curiosity remains alive and kicking.
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Messages From

Kashf's Supporters

BIO‘)

NBP

BIO

BIO wishes a very nice 25th birthday to Kashf Foundation and its entire team.We
are very proud to be a close partner of your institution. We will do our utmost
to continue to support you the best we can. Sincere congratulations for your
work since your very first day. We wish you to be able to continue to create as
much impact as you already did over the past 25 years.

The Bank of Punjab

During the past 25 years, Kashf has led the microfinance industry as the most
innovative, socially conscious, sustainable and ethical organization. Today, Kashf
Foundation stands as a harbinger of female empowerment, social literacy and
financial inclusion. The team’s commitment to the cause, ethos and vision make
them champions in their field. The Bank of Punjab is a proud partner in Kashf’s
efforts to ensuring financial independence and uplifting of the most deserving and
unserved segments of the society. BOP congratulates the entire Kashf family on
this occasion and we reaffirm our commitment to support you in the journey
ahead.

Finnfund

Finnfund would like to congratulate Kashf Foundation on its 25th Anniversary.lt
has been a pleasure to work with the highly skilled professionals of Kashf
Foundation. We wish all the best for Kashf Foundation, and hope we will have
fruitful cooperation in the years to come!

Frankfurt School

Congratulations on this big occasion! Kashf Foundation has always been very
socially responsible and has shown utmost dedication towards woman's inclusion
in business and the workplace. It has been a great cooperation. Cheers to future
successes!

NBP

NBP conveys its sincere congratulations to Kashf Foundation on the completion
of 25 years of services in the Microfinance Industry. Kashf is not only providing
financial services but also plays an active role in the development and uplifting of
the economy, by providing entrepreneurship and employment opportunities to
the underprivileged section of Pakistan especially female entrepreneurs.
Financial Inclusion and reaching out to the marginalized segments of society is
very close to NBP’s mission. NBP has found natural synergies with Kashf as we
believe both institutions complement each other, since Kashf reaches to those
segments of the population where NBP is not present.
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symbiotics

OeEB

OeEB, the Development Bank of Austria, has been providing long-term
financing to Kashf since 2019. Promoting gender equality and increasing
financial inclusion are core goals within our strategy. Kashf is an excellent
partner in this field with a longstanding track record of empowering female
entrepreneurs in Pakistan by providing access to finance and training.

We look forward to continuing our successful partnership.

PMIC

Kashf Foundation has played a significant role in the growth of Pakistan’s
microfinance sector. Its strong governance and management structures,
robust policies, its efforts in maintaining good portfolio quality,and adherence
to global best practices make it one of the leading microfinance institutions
in the country. Kashf Foundation’s role in empowering women also needs to
be commended as they have been providing sustainable access to finance to
women clients, capacity - building training to help them grow their
enterprises and transform the lives of their families. PMIC is proud of its
partnership with the Kashf which has thrived over the years and helped
transformed the lives of communities across Pakistan. We aspire to further
strengthen our bond in years to come.

PROPARCO
PROPARCO is proud to support the Kashf mission and its wonderful work

in the field of financial inclusion and women empowerment in Pakistan.With
the vision of Ms. Roshaneh and the experienced management team, Kashf
Foundation is a strong and committed institution we wish to work with in
the long run. We congratulate Kashf Foundation for completing 25 years!

Symbiotics

Symbiotics highly appreciates the important role Kashf Foundation is playing
in assisting marginalized individuals and developing the microfinance industry
in Pakistan. Symbiotics is proud of its strong and long-term relationship with
Kashf and respects how its management team has successfully navigated
challenging times.VWe are delighted to continue supporting Kashf in achieving
its vision of alleviating poverty throughout Pakistan.
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KASHF FOUNDATION
(A Company setup Under Section 47
of Companies Act, 2017)

Audited Financial Statements for the Year Ended
30 JUNE 2022




KASHF FOUNDATION
(A COMPANY SETUP UNDER SECTION 42 OF COMPANIES ACT, 2017)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Asg at 30 June 2022
2022 202
Note Rupees Rupees
ASSETS
NON CURRENT ASSETS
Property and equipment 7 793,888,324 861,806,243
Intangible assets 8 47 BT6,696 37 944 865
Investment property a 103,424,250 88,150,750
Long term investments 10 180,515,000 180,515,000
Long term loans 11 1,221,141 217,730
Long term micro-credit loan portfolio 12 144,009,258 216,962
Financial assets used for hedging 13 1,267,147 ,107 103,255,478
Long term deposits 14 79,963,360 _ 463,360
2,618,045,136 1,272 660,388

CURRENT ASSETS
Micro-credit loan portfolio 15 18,744,012,488 15218,745610
Kashf Murabaha portiolio 16 726,644 675 539,440,958
Accrued service charges 17 256,550,163 180,960,347
Short term investments 18 1,385,9256,482 1,213,032,111
Financial assets used for hedging 13 1,319,960,982 51112473
Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables 19 868,932,977 604,887,258
Cash and bank balances 20 6,368,669,910 5823306812

29,670,696,677 23,741,485 569

32,288,741,813 25,014145,957
FUNDS AND LIABILITIES -
FUNDS
Donated funds 21 237,005,711 240,035,924
Accumulated surplus 5,586,179,603 3,908 882,532
Loan loss resarve 22 984,148,137 823,285,358
Special reserve 96,745,256 -
Hedging reserve 26,558,614 23427241
Surplus on revaluation of land 300,203,137 300,203,137

7.230,840,457 5,265,834.192

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long term financing 23 12,514,952,944 10,162,784,549
Lease liabilities 24 61,233,816 128,810,341

12,576,186,760 10,281 594,890
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current portion of long term financing 23 10,464 087,155 B,071,550,336
Current portion of lease liabilities 24 77,981,156 68,511,543
Shaort term borrowings 25 392,146,482 43 415547
Deferred grants 26 187,120,696 386,277,030
Accrued markup 27 600,709,609 417,198,716
Trade and other payables 28 759,669,699 439,763,703

12,481,714,5696 9,426,7T16.875

32,288,741,813 25,014,145957
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 29

The annexed notes 1 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements.

32

Chief Fgancial Officer

et

ﬁecto r




KASHF FOUNDATION

(A COMPANY SETUP UNDER SECTION 42 OF COMPANIES ACT, 2017)
STATEMENT OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE

For the year ended 30 June 2022

Note

Mark-up and other charges on micro-credit loan portfolio 30

Profit on Kashf Murabaha

Grant income £y
Return on investments and bank deposits 32
Programme cost 33
Impairment loss on micre-credit loan and murabaha
portfolio

Grant expenses 34
Finance cost 35
Management and administrative expenses 36
Other expenses 37
Other income 38
Surplus for the year

2022 2021
Rupees Rupees
6,408,831,370 4,839, 852,835
244,251,949 161,225,292
229 877,205 67,849 808
646,580,734 633,502,069
7,529,551,258 5,702,520,004
(2,343,892,226) (1,991,513,138)
(186,275,209) {487,532,705)
{229,877,205) (67,849 808)
(2,664,032,863) (2,021,523,557)
(5,424,077,503) (4,568,419,208)
2,105,473,755 1,134,100,796
{515,180,219) {434,591,950)
(1,379,380) (28,426,040)
345,990,949 98,013,964
{170,568,650) {365,004 ,026)
1,934,905,105 769,096 770

The annexed notes 1 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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KASHF FOUNDATION

(A COMPANY SETUP UNDER SECTIOM 42 OF COMPAMIES ACT, 2017)
STATEMENT CF COMPREHEMNSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 30 June 2022

2021
Rupees

768,086,770

{1,195,504,136)
1,326,172,537

130,668,401

2022
Rupees

Surplus for the year 1,934,905,105
Other comprehensive income
[tems to be reclassified to income and expenditure

in subsequent periods:
Cashflow hedges

- effective portion of changes in fair value 3,086,696,874

- recalssified to income and expenditure (3,083,565,501)

3,131,373

Total comprehensive income for the year 1,938,036,478

The annexed notes 1 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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KASHF FOUNDATION

(A COMPANY SETUP UNDER SECTICN 42 OF COMPAMIES ACT, 2017)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 30 June 2022

h from ating activiti
Surplus for the year
Adjustments for non cash items:
Depreciation
Amaortization
Liabilities written back
Markup on lease liabilities
Return on investments and bank deposils
Amortization of transaction costs of long term loans
Finance cost
Gain on disposal of operating fived assets
Gain on termination of lease
Grant income
Deferred loss on sale and lease back
Fair value gain on mutual funds
Fair value gain on investment property
Dividend income
Foreign exchange (gain) / loss
Impairment loss on micro-credit loan and murabaha

Surplus before working capital changes

T ES

Increase in micro-credit loan portfolio

Increase in Kashf Murabaha

{Increase) f decrease in accrued service charges

Increase in advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables
Increase in deferred grants

Increase in trade and other payables

Cash used in operations

Finance cost paid
Long term loan - net
Long term deposit - mat

Sale proceeds from disposal of operating fived assets
Return received on investments and bank deposite
Investments - mef

Net cash generated from investing activities

Cash flow from financing activities

Trangaction costs paid for long term loans

Payment of lease liabllities

Proceeds received against financing

Repayments of financing

Net cash generated from financing activities

Effect of exchange rate changes on opening cash and cash equivalents

Net increase f (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

The annexed notes 1 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements,
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2022 2021
Rupees Rupees
1,934,905,105 769,096,770
160,510,034 158,161 557
5,504,391 3,684 052
(3.946,068) (40,317 ,980)
17,396,142 28,079,805
(646,580,734) (633,592 065)
99,327 589 93,682,564
2,318,774,263 1,787,049 754
(7.015,905) (6,039,091)
(8,259,141) -
(229,877,205) (67,849,808)
- 924,408
(100,637) (109,258)
(15,273,500) (5,646,850)
(8,040,784) (3,575,882)
(249,277 ,638) 28,183,114
186,275,209 487,532,705
1,619,406,016 1,830,177,021
3,554,311,121 2599273791
(3.830,080,734) (3,437 615,083)
(212,360,448) (133,739, 445)
(68,716,949) 446,481 800
(72,413,798) (21,802,132)
30,720,771 419,805,423
167,370,477 96,875,996
(3,985,480,879) (2,629,593 341)
{431,169,558) (30,719,550)
(2,135,263,470) (1,981 569 284)
(1,003,411) 409,194
(79,500,000) 4,515,300
{2,646,936,439) (2,007 364,340)
(88,117 ,863) (74,031,801)
10,242 396 7,283 383
€11,440,400 727,356,513
(48,812,297) 885,076,406
486,752,630 1,545,684,501
(34,369,163) (118,083817)
(92,290,873) (87,584,070)
11,848 920,474 7,425 584 253
(9,254,393,598) (5,943 841,530)
2,457,866,840 275,974,736
137,680,067 [2,026,558)
445,363,098 (187, 731,701)
5,923,306,812 6,111,038 513
6,368,669,910 5923,306,812

/

ﬁector




KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.

Chartered Accountants

351 Shadman-1, Jail Road,

Lahoré 54000 Pakistan

+92 (42) 111-KPMGTH (576484), Fax +92 (42) 3742 9907

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the members of Kashf Foundation
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Kashf Foundation {the Company), which comprise
the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2022, and the statement of income and expenditure, the
statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in accumulated funds, the statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the
information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the
purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement
of financial position, the statement of income and expenditure, the statement of comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in accumulated funds and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming
part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively
give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 30 June 2022 and of the surplus and
other comprehensive income, the changes in accumulated funds and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan {the Code) and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide " a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report but does not include the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materiaily misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

7 L )
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Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Rinicie



KkbME

KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX
of 2017);

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of income and expenditure, the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in accumulated funds and the statement of cash
flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017
(XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the
purpose of the Company’s business; and

d) no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980)
Other Matter

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2021, were audited by another auditor
who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on 11 October 2021.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Fahad Bin Waheed.

Lahore KPMG Taseer Hadi &/Co.
Chartered Accountants

Date: 11 October 2022

UDIN: AR202210089yMeodjY8U
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KASHF FOUNDATION
(A COMPANY SETUP UNDER SECTION 42 OF COMPANIES ACT, 2017)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 30 June 2022
2022 2021
Note Rupees Rupees
ASSETS
NON CURRENT ASSETS
Property and equipment 7] 793,888,324 861,896,243
Intangible assets 8 47,876,636 37,944,865
investment property ) 103,424,250 88,150,750
Long term investments 10 180,515,000 180,515,000
Long term loans U 1,221,141 217,730
Long term micro-credit loan portfolio 12 144,009,258 216,962
Financial assets used for hedging B 1,267,147,107 103,255,478
Long term deposits 14 79,863,360 463.360
2,618,045,136 1,272,660,388
CURRENT ASSETS
Micro-credit oan portfolio 5 18,744,012,488 15,218.745.610
Kashf Murabaha portfolio 16 726,644,675 539,440,958
Accrued service charges iz 256,550,163 180,980,347
Short term investments 18 1,385,925.482 1.213,032.1M
Financial assets used for hedging 18 1,319,960,982 51,112,473
Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables 19 B868,932977 604, BBT. 258
Cash and bank balances 20 £,368,669,910 5,923,306.812
29,670,696,677 23,741,485,569
T 32,288,741,813 75,014,145,957
FUNDS AND LIABILITIES
FUNDS
Donated tunds 21 237,005,711 240,035 924
Accumulated surplus 5,586,179,603 3,908,882 532
Loan loss reserve 22 984,148,137 823,285 358
Special reserve 96,745,255 -
Hedging reserve 26,558,614 23427241
Surplus on revaluation of land 300,203,137 300,203,137
7.230,840,457 5,295,834,192
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long term tinancing 23 12,514,952,944 10,162,784,549
Lease liabilities 24 61.233.816 128,810,341
12,576,186,760 10,291,594,890
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current portion of long term financing 23 10,464,087,155 B.071,650,336
Current portion of lease liabilities 24 77,981,155 68,511,543
Short term borrowings 25 392,146,482 434165547
Deferred grants 26 187,120,596 386, 277.030
Accrued markup 27 600,709,509 417,198,716
Trade and other payables 28 759,669,699 439,763,703
12,481,714,596 9,426,716,875
32,288,741.813 25,014,145,957
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 29

The annexed notes 1 to 48 form an integra! part of these financial statements.

W’u
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KASHF FOUNDATION

(A COMPANY SETUP UNDER SECTION 42 OF COMPANIES ACT, 2017}
STATEMENT OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE

For the year ended 30 June 2022

2022 2021
Note Rupees Rupees
Mark-up and other charges on micro-credit loan portfolio 30 6,408,831,370 4,839,852,835
Profit on Kasht Murabaha 244,251,943 161,225,292
Grant income 31 229,877,205 67,849,808
Return on investments and bank deposits 32 646,590,734 633,592,069
7,529,551,258 5,702,520,004
Programme cost 33 (2,343,892,226] (1,931,513,138)
Impairment loss on micro-credit loan and murabaha {186,275,209) (487,532,705}
portfolio

Grant expenses 34 (229,877,205) (67,849,808}
Finance cost 35 [2,664,032,863) (2,021,523,557)
{5,424,077,503) (4 568,419,208}

2,105,473,755 1,134,100,796
Management and administrative expenses 36 (515,180,219} (434,591,950}
Other expenses 37 {1,379,380) (28,426,040}
Other income 38 345,990,949 98,013,964
{170,568,650) (365,004,026)

Surplus for the year 1,934,905,105 769,096,770

The annexed notes 1 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements.

ﬁ_uﬁ"*
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Chief Executive Officer
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KASHF FOUNDATION

{A COMPANY SETUP UNDER SECTION 42 OF COMPANIES ACT, 2017)

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 30 June 2022

Surplus for the year
Other comprehensive income

ltemns to be reclassified to income and expenditure
in subsequent periods:

Cashflow hedges

- effective portion of changes in fair value
- recalssified to income and expenditure

Total comprehensive income for the year

2022 2021
Rupees Rupees
1,934,905,105 769,096,770
3,086,696,874 (1,195,504, 136)
{3,083,565,501) 1,326,172,537
3,131,273 130,668,401
1,938,036,478 899,765,171

The annexed notes 1 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements.

@
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KASHF FOUNDATION

{A COMPANY SETUP UNDER SECTION 42 OF COMPANIES ACT, 2017}
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 30 June 2022

Cash flow from operating activities
Surplus for the year
Adjustments for non cash items:
Depreciation
Amortization
Liabilities written back
Markup on lease lisbilities
Return on investments and bank deposits
Amortization of transaction costs of long term loans
Finance cost
Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets
Gain on termination of lease
Grent income
Deferred loss on sale and lease back
Feair value gain on mutual funds
Fair value gain on investment property
Dividend income
Foreign exchange {(gain) / loss
impairment loss on micro-credit loan and murabaha

Surplus before working capital changes

Working capital changes

Increase in micro-credit loan portfolio

Increase in Kashf Murabaha

{increase) / decreasse in accrued service charges

Increass in advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables
Increase in deferred grants

Increase in trade and other payables

Cash used in operations
Finance cost paid

Long term loan - net
Long term deposit - net

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flow from investing activitios

Capital expenditure incurred

Sale proceeds from disposal of operating fixed assets
Return received on investments and bank deposits
Investments - net

Net cash generated from investing activities

Cash flow from linancing activities

Transaction costs paid for long term loans

Paymaent of lease liabilities

Proceeds received against financing

Repayments of financing

Net cash generated from financing activities

Effect of exchange rate changes on opsning cash and cash equivalents
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

The ennexed notes 1 1o 48 form an integral part of thess financial statements.

) //'
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2022 20
Rupees Rupess
1,934,905,105 769,096,770
160,510,034 158,161,557
5,504,391 3.694,052
{3.846,068) (40,317,980)
17,396,142 28,079,805
{646,590,734) 633,592,069}
99,327,589 93,682,564
2,318,774,263 1,787,049,754
{7,015,905) (6,038,081}
(8,259,141} -
{229,877,205) (67,845 B0B)
4 924,408
[100,637) {109,258
[15,273,500) (5,6486.850)
[8.040,784) (3,575,882)
(249,277,638) 28,183,114
186,275,209 487,532,706
1,619.406,016 1,830,177,021
3,554,311,121 2,599,273,791
{3,830,080,734) (3.437,615,083)
{212,360,446) {133,739, 445)
{68,716,949) 446,487,500
[72,413,798) (21,802,132}
30,720,771 419,805,423
167,370,477 96,875,996
(3.985,480,679) {2,629,993,341)
{431,169,558) {30.718,5500
{2,135,263,470) {1,581 569,284}
(1,003,411} 408,154
{78,500,000) #.515300
{2,646,936,439) (2,007,364,340)
{86,117,869) [74,031,801]
10,242,396 7,283,383
611,440,400 727,355,513
{48,812,297) BE5,076,406
486,752,630 1,645,684,501
(34,369,163) {118,083.917)
{92,290,873) (87,584,070}
11,848,920,474 7,425,584,253
19,264,393,598)| | 15.943.541.530)
2,467 866,840 275,974,736
137,680,067 (2,026,598}
445,363,098 (187,731,701)
5.923,306,812 6,111,038,513
6,368,669,910 5,923,306,812
Director



KASHF FOUNDATION

(A COMPANY SETUP UNDER SECTION 42 OF COMPANIES ACT, 2017}
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2022

1 The Company and its operations

Kashf Foundation {the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan on 15 February 2007 as a public
company limited by guarantee, not having a share capital and licensed as a non-profit organization under
section 42 of the Companies Act, 2017. In October 2016, the Company received license from Securities
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP), to carry out investment finance services as a non-
banking finance company under the Non Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulations)
Rules, 2003 (NBFC Rules).

The principal activity of the Company is to provide cost effective micro-finance services to poor
households in order to enhance their economic role and allow self-employed individuals the sustained
opportunity of matching existing skills with financial resources. The Company also provides non-
financial services in the form of training through vocational training centers both to its borrowers and to
its statf. Registered office of the Company is situated at 1-C, Shahrah Nazaria e Pakistan, Lahore. The
Company has 341 (2021: 325) branches in Pakistan.

2 Statement of compliance

2.1 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards
applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS standards) issued by the international
Accounting Standards Board {IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

- Accounting Standard for Not for Profit Organizations {Accounting Standard for NPOs)
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan as notified under the
Companies Act, 2017,

- Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 (NBFC
Rules) and the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008
(NBFC Regulations);

- Islamic Financial Accounting Standards ({IFASs) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan as are notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, NBFC Rules and
NBFC Regulations difter from the IFRS or the Accounting Standard for NPOs, the provisions
of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

2.2 The State Bank of Pakistan {SBP), vide BPRD circular letter No. 03 of 2022 dated 05 July 2022
has deferred the applicability of IFRS 9 *Financial Instruments” till 01 January 2024. However,
the Company has early adopted the standard during the year ended 30 June 2019.

3 Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for the
following which are stated at fair values / present values:

- Revaluation of freehold land;
- Certain foreign currency translation adjustments;

W
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- Fair value measurement of investment property;
- Fair value measurement of certain short term investment; and
- Right of use of assets and corresponding lease liabilities.

The financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees (‘RS') which is the company's functional
currency. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest Rupee, unless otherwise indicated.

New standards / amendments to approved accounting standards and interpretations

4.1 There are a number of amendments and interpretations that are effective from 01 July 2021
however, these do not have any significant effect on the financial statements.

4.2 Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting
standards that are not yet effective:

The following International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) as notified under
the Companies Act, 2017 and the amendments and interpretations thereto will be effective
for accounting periods beginning on or after 01 July 2022:

-~ Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments to |AS 37) effective for
the annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2022 clarifies that the ‘cost of
fulfilling a contract' for the purposes of the onerous contract assessment comprises the
costs that relate directly 1o the contract, including both the incremental costs and an
allocation of other direct costs to fulfil the contract. An entity is required to apply the
amendments to contracts for which it has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the
beginning of the annual reporting period in which it first applies the amendments {the
date of initial application). Restatement of comparative information is not required,
instead the amendments require an entity to recognize the cumulative effect of initially
applying the amendments as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings
or other component of equity, as appropriate, at the date of initial application.

- The following annual improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 are effective for
annual reporting periods beginning on or after 01 January 2022.

- IFRS 9 — The amendment clarifies that an entity includes only fees paid or received
between the entity (the borrower) and the lender, including fees paid or received by
either the entity or the lender on the other’s behalf, when it applies the “10 per cent’
test in paragraph B3.3.6 of IFRS 9 in assessing whether to derecognize a financial
liability.

- IFRS 16 ~ The amendment partially amends lilustrative Example 13 accompanying
IFRS 16 by excluding the illustration of reimbursement of leasehold improvements
by the lessor. The objective of the amendment is to resolve any potential confusion
that may arise in lease incentives.

- IAS 41 - The amendment removes the requirement in paragraph 22 of 1AS 41 for
entities to exclude taxation cash flows when measuring the fair value of a biological
asset using a present value technique. This amendment enables the fair value
measurement of biological assets on a post-tax basis.

- Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to IAS 16)
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2022 clarifies that sales
proceeds and costs of items produced while bringing an item of property, plant and
equipment to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management e.g. when testing etc., are recognized in profit or loss
in accordance with applicable Standards. The entity measures the cost of those items
applying the measurement requirements of |AS 2. The standard also removes the
requirement of deducting the net sales proceeds from cost of testing.

N
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An entity shall apply those amendments retrospectively, but only to items of property,
plant and equipment that are brought to the location and condition necessaty for them to
be capable of operating in the manner intended by management on or after the
beginning of the earliest period presented in the financial statements in which the entity
first applies the amendments.

The entity shall recognize the cumulative sffect of initially applying the amendments as
an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings {or other component ot
equity, as appropriate} at the beginning of that earliest period presented.

Reference to the Conceptual Framework (Amendments to IFRS 3) - Reference to the
Conceptual Framework, issued in May 2020, amended paragraphs 11, 14, 21, 22 and 23
and added paragraphs 21A, 218, 21C and 23A to IFRS 3 . An entity shall apply those
amendments to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the
beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after 01 January 2022.

Classification of liabilities as current or non-current {(Amendments to IAS 1) apply
retrospectively for the annual pericds beginning on or after 01 January 2023. These
amendments in the standards have been added to further clarify when a liability is
classified as current. Convertible debt may need to be reclassified as ‘current’. The
standard also amends the aspect of classification of liability as non-current by requiring
the assessment of the entity’s right at the end of the reporting period to defer the
settlement of liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. An entity's
expectation and discretion at the reporting date to refinance or to reschedule payments
on a long-term basis are no longer relevant for the classification of a liability as current or
non-current. An entity shall apply those amendments retrospectively in accordance with
1AS 8.

Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to [AS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2)
- the Board has issued amendments on the application of materiality to disclosure of
accounting policies and to help companies provide useful accounting policy disclosures.
The key amendments to IAS 1 include :

- requiring companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their
significant accounting policies;

- clarifying that accounting policies related to immaterial transactions, other events or
conditions are themselves immaterial and as such need not be disclosed; and

- claritying that not all accounting policies that relate to material transactions, other
events or conditions are themselves material to a company’s financial statements.

The Board also amended IFRS Practice Statement 2 to include guidance and two
additional examples on the application of materiality to accounting policy disclosures. The
amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 01 January
2023 with earlier application permitted.

Definition of Accounting Estimates {Amendments to I1AS 8) introduce a new definition for
accounting estimates clarifying that they are monetary amounts in the financial
statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments also clarify
the relationship between accounting policies and accounting estimates by specitying that
an entity develops an accounting estimate to achieve the objective set out by an
accounting policy. The amendments are effective for periods beginning on or after 01
January 2023, with earlier application permitted, and will apply prospectively to changes
in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies occurring on or after the
beginning of the first annual reporting period in which the company applies the
amendments.

M-.m:‘ﬁ‘

Page 8 of 49



_ Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction
{(Amendments to IAS 12} narrow the scope of the initial recognition exemption (IRE) so
that it does not apply to transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary
ditferences. As a result, companies will need to recognize a deferred tax asset and a
deferred tax liability for temporary differences arising on initial recognition of a lease and
a decommissioning provision.

For leases and decommissioning liabilities, the associated deferred tax asset and
liabilities will need to be recognized from the beginning of the earliest comparative period
presented, with any cumulative effect recognized as an adjustment to retained earnings
or other components of equity at that date. The amendments are effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 01 January 2023 with earlier application
permitted.

- Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
(Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28) - The amendment amends accounting treatment
on loss of control of business or assets. The amendments also introduce new
accounting for less frequent transaction that involves neither cost nor full step-up of
certain retained interests in assets that are not businesses. The effective date for these
changes has been deferred indefinitely until the completion of a broader review.

The above amendments are not likely to have a material impact on the Company's financial statements.
Use of accounting estimates, judgements and assumptions

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards
requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that atfect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions and judgements are based on historical experience and other factors that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances, the result of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are readily apparent from other sources. Actual resufts
may differs from these estimates;

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision effects only that
period, or in the period of revision and future periods if revision affects both current and future periods.
The areas where various assumptions and estimates are significant to Company's financial statements
are as follows:

Note
- Impairment of micro-credit loans and murabaha portfolio 64.4
- Fair value of derivatives (cross currency swaps) 6.5
- Lease term 6.10

5.1 Measurement of fair values

A number of the accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values,
for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. The Company has an established
control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. If third party information,
such as broker quotes, is used to measure fair values, then the management assesses the
evidence obtained independently or from the third parties to support the conclusion that
these valuations meet the requirements of IFRS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy
in which the valuations should be classified. The significant item measured at fair value
includes fair value measurements of cross currency swaps.

Ww
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Summary of significant accounting policies

The significant accounting policies adopted for the preparation of the financial statements are set out
below. The accounting policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented.

6.1

Property and equipment
Owned

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any identified impairment loss
except land which is stated at revalued amount less any identified impairment loss. Cost
comprises purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after
deducting trade discounts and rebates, and includes other costs directly attributable to the
acquisition or construction, erection and installation.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Major repairs and
improvements are capitalized and the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized.
All other repair and maintenance are charged to income and expenditure account as and
when incurred.

Increase in carrying amount arising of revaluation of land is credited to revaluation surplus on
land account except for a reversal of deficit already charged to income and expenditure
account. A revaluation deficit is recognized in income and expenditure, except for a deficit
directly offsetting a previous surplus, in which case the deficit is taken to revaluation surplus
on land.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight line method so as to write off the property and
equipment, over their expected useful lives. Depreciation is calculated at the rates stated in
note 7.1. The assets’ residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed and
adjusted, if appropriate, at each reporting date. The effect of any revision are charged to
income and expenditure account for the year, when the changes arise. Depreciation on
additions to property and equipment is charged from the month in which an asset is acquired
or capitalized while no depreciation is charged for the month in which the asset is disposed-
off.

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains and losses on disposals are
determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. These are recognized in
statement of income and expenditure for the year.

Impairment

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that fixed
assets may be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are
reviewed to assess whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amounts.
Where carrying values exceed the respective recoverable amounts, assets are written down
to their recoverable amounts and the resulting impairment loss is recognized in statement of
income and expenditure.

When impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased
to the revised recoverable amount but limited to the extent of the amount which would have
been determined had there been no impairment. Reversal of impairment loss is recognized as
income.

W
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6.2

6.3

6.4

6.4.1

The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in
use. Where an impairment loss is recognized, the depreciation charge is adjusted in the
future periods to allocate the asset's revised carrying amount over its estimated useful lifte.

Intangible assets

Expenditure incurred to acquire computer software is capitalized as intangible assets and
stated at cost less accumulated amortization and any identified impairment loss. These are
amortized using the straight line method over their estimated useful life.

Full month's amortization is charged in the month of addition while no amortization is charged
in the month of deletion.

Subsequently the expenditure is capitalized when it increases the future economic benefits
embodied in the specific assets to which it relates.

The residual value, useful life and amortization method is reviewed and adjusted, if
appropriate, at each reporting date.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held either to earn rental income or for capitat
appreciation of for both. Investment properties are measured using fair value model with any
change therein recognized in statement of income and expenditure. The Company has valued
investment properties using external valuator at reporting date. When the use of properties
changes such that it is transferred to property and equipment, its fair value at the date of
reclassification becomes its cost for subsequent accounting, similarly when the property
recorded as property and equipment is transferred to investment property, it is recorded at
fair value determined at reclassification date and surplus on such property at that time is
credited to surplus on revaluation amount and deficit is charged to statement of income and
expenditure.

Financial instruments
Financial assets - Classification and measurement

Under IFRS 9, on initial recognition, the Company classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

- Those 1o be measured subsequently at fair value either through other comprehensive
income {"FVOC!"), or through profit or loss ("FVTPL"); and

- Those to be measured at amortized cost.

The classification depends upon entity's business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

The following assessments have been made on the basis of the facts and circumstances that
existed at the date of initial application:

- The determination of business mode! within which a financial asset is held; and

- The designation of certain financial assets with respect to subsequent measurement
either through income and expenditure or other comprehensive income.

T
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A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions:

- it is held within business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows; and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on principal amount outstanding.

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the tollowing conditions:

- it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest,
the Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing
whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or
amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this
assessment, the Company considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;
- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable-rate features,;
- prepayment and extension features; and

- terms that limit the Company's claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-
recourse features)

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in OCI. This
election is made on an investment-by-investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or FVOCI as described above
are measured at FVTPL. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at
FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that
would otherwise arise.

A financial asset is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition.

The following accounting policies apply to the subseguent measurement of financial assets:

Financial assets at These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains
FVTPL and losses, including an interest / markup or dividend income, are
recognised in statement of income and expenditure.

Financial assets at These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using

amortized cost effective interest method. The amortized cost is reduced by
impairment losses, if any. Interest / markup income, foreign
exchange gains, losses and impairment are recognised in
statement of income and expenditure,

y
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6.4.2

6.4.3

6.4.4

Debt investment at These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest /

FVOCI markup income calculated using the effective interest method,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are
recognised in statement of income and expenditure. Other net
gains and losses are recognised in statement of comprehensive
income. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCl
are reclassified to statement of income and expenditure.

Equity investments These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends

at FVOCI are recognised in statement of income and expenditure unless
the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of
the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCl
and are never reclassitied to statement of income and
expenditure.

Financial liabilities - Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified and measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability
is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated
as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net
gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in statement of income and
expenditure. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are
recognized in statement of income and expenditure. Any gain or loss on derecognition is
recognised in statement of income and expenditure.

Derecognition

Financlal assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows
in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership ot the financial
asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of
the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortized cost, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognized in statement of income and expenditure.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged
or cancelled, or expire. The Company also derecognizes a financial liability when its terms are
modified and the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially different, in which case a
new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount
extinguished and the consideration paid {including any non-cash assets transterred or liabilities
assumed) is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment

The Company recognizes loss allowances for ECL on:

- financial assets measured at amortized cost;
- debt investments measured at FVOCI

@,u.&"k
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64.5

6.4.6

65

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of assets exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in income and expenditure.
Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any
indications that the losses has decreased or no longer exists.

Additional information about how the Company measures allowance for impairment is
detailed in note 42.2 of the financial statements.

Write-off policy

The Company writes off loan assets that are past due 180 days from the maturity date.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to enforcement activities under the
Company's recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where appropriate. Any
recoveries made against financial assets written-off are recognized in statement of income
and expenditure.

Off setting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the
statement of financial position when, and only when, the Company has a legal enforceable
right to set off the transaction and it intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the
asset and settie the liability simultaneously.

Hedge accounting -

The Company holds derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign currency and interest
rate risk exposures. These derivatives are initially measured at fair value. Subsequent 1o initial
recognition, derivatives are measured at fair value, and changes therein are generally
recognized in statement of income and expenditure.

The Company designates these derivatives as hedging instruments to hedge the variability in
cash flows associated with foreign currency denominated loans.

At inception of designated hedging relationships, the Company documents the risk
management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The Company also
documents the economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument,
including whether the changes in cash flows of the hedged item and hedging instrument are
expected to offset each other.

When a derivative is designated as a cash flow hedging instrument, the effective portion of
changes in the fair value of the derivative is recognized in OCl and accumulated in the
hedging reserve. The effective portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative that is
recognized in OCI is limited to the cumulative change in fair value of the hedged item,
determined on a present value basis, from inception of the hedge. Any ineffective portion of
changes in the fair value of the derivative is recognized immediately in statement of income
and expenditure.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting or the hedging instrument is
sold, expires, is terminated or is exercised, then hedge accounting is discontinued
prospectively. When hedge accounting for cash flow hedges is discontinued, the amount that
has been accumulated in the hedging reserve remains in equity until it is reclassified to
statement of income and expenditure in the same period or periods as the hedged expected
future cash flows affect statement of income and expenditure.

If the hedged future cash flows are no longer expected to occur, then the amounts that have

been accumulated in the hedging reserve and the cost of hedging reserve are immediately
reclassified to statement of income and expenditure.

W
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6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

6.10

6.10.1

Investment in associates

Investments in associates are initially recognized at cost. At subsequent reporting dates, the
recoverable amounts are estimated to determine the extent of impairment losses, if any, and
carrying amounts of investments are adjusted accordingly. Impairment losses are recognized
as expense. Where impairment losses subsequently reverse, the carrying amounts of the
investments are increased to the revised recoverable amounts but limited to the extent of
initial cost of investments. A reversal of impairment loss is recognized in the statement of
income and expenditure.

Kashf Murabaha

In Murabaha transactions, the Company advances funds to the person known as agent. At
that time agent purchases the goods on behalf of the Company. Agent takes the possession
of goods and offers to purchase the goods from the Company which when accepted is
binding on both parties. The customer agrees to pay to the Company, the cost of goods plus
profit agreed by the participants on a credit terms of twelve equal monthly installments.

The criteria mentioned in note 6.4.4 is followed for recording of impairment loss.
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at cost. For the
purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand and
bank balances. In the statement of financial position, finances under mark-up arrangements
are shown separately.

Borrowings from financial institutions and others

Loans and borrowings are initially recorded at the proceeds received. Transaction costs
directly attributable to obtaining the loans and borrowings are deducted in determining the
proceeds received on initial recognition. In subsequent periods, borrowings are stated at
amortized cost using effective vield method. Finance charges are accounted for on an accrual
basis and are included in creditors and accruals to the extent of the amount remaining unpaid.
Arrangement fees and other transaction costs are also amortized over the term of loan using
eftective yield method.

Leases
Lease liabilities

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if
that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company's incremental borrowing rate. Generally,
the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

The Company determines its incremental borrowing rate by taking average of the interest
rates from its various external financing,

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:

- fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;
- variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date;

The lease liability is subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method. It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the Company's estimate of the amount
expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, if the Company changes its
assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option or if there
is a revised in-substance fixed lease payment.

W
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6.10.2

6.11

6.12

6.13

6.14

6.15

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made 10 the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in income and expenditure it the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

Right-of-use asset

The Company recognizes right-of-use asset at lease commencement date. The right-of-use
asset is initially measured at cost which comprise the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial
direct cost incurred and subsequently at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
fosses, and adjusted for certain re-measurements of lease liability. The right-of-use asset is
subsequently depreciated using the straight line method from the commencement date to
the earlier of the end of useful lite of the right-of-use asset or the end of lease term. The
estimated useful lives of right-of-use asset are determined on the same basis as those of the
operating fixed assets. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment
losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of lease liability. Right-of-use assets
are disclosed in the property and equipment as referred in note 7.1 to these financial
statements.

Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are carried at cost which is the fair value of the
consideration to be paid in future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the
Company.

Loan loss reserve

General reserve up to 5% of the outstanding loan portfolio is created that is recognized in
statement of accumulated funds.

Special reserve

The Company is required under the requirements of Non-Banking Finance Companies and
Notified Entities Regulations, to maintain a special reserve to which an appropriation equal to
5% of the after tax surplus is made.

Employee retirement benefits - defined contribution plan

The Company operates an approved defined contribution provident fund for all permanent
employees. Equal monthly contributions are made by the Company and the employees to the
tund at the rate of 10% of basic salary per month.

Recognition of grants and donations

Grants are recognized when there is reasonable assurance that the entity will comply with the
relevant conditions, if any, and the grant will be received.

Grants related to assets other than biological assets, are initially recognized at fair value in
statement of financial position, as deferred income, that is amortized over the useful life of
the asset.

Grants related to project expenses are recognized as revenue in the statement of income and
expenditure on a systematic basis in the same periods in which the expenses are incurred, on
a net basis i.e. offset the grant against the related expenditure.
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6.16

6.17

6.18

6.19

6.20

Grants where no conditions are associated by the donor with its utilization are recognized as
income in the period in which it is received.

Taxation

The Company is entitied to one hundred percent tax credit of the income tax payable,
including minimum and final taxes payable, under section 100(C) of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001. Therefore. no provision of income tax has been accounted for in these
financial statements.

Income recognition

Mark-up on micro-credit loans are recognized using eftective yield method at prevailing mark-
up rates for loan products. Profit on Murabaha is recognized on an accrual basis. Profit on
Murabaha transactions for the period is accounted for on the culmination of Murabaha
transactions. The portion of profit not due is deferred and treated as Bai Muajjal and profit on
Bai Muajjal is recognized on accrual basis.

Return on investments and bank deposits is recognized when earned. Dividend is recognized
as income when right to receive dividend is established.

Foreign currencies

The financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at
exchange rates prevailing at the reporting date except for the loans referred to in note 23.
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at the exchange rate
prevailing at the date of transaction. All non-monetary items are translated into Pak Rupees at
exchange rates prevailing on the date of transaction or on the date when fair values are
determined.

Forsign exchange gains and losses on these translations are recognized in the statement of
income and expenditure.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as
a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required 1o settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be
made. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate.

Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability is disclosed when the Company has a possible obligation as a result of
past events, whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence, of
one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company; or the
Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that arises from past events, but it is
not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation, or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient
reliability.
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2022 0N
Long term investments Note Rupess Rupees
Investment in associate 103 . -
investment in term finance certificates 10.2 180,515,000 180,515,000
180,515,000 180,515,000
10.1 Investment in associate - Kashf Holding (Private} Limited
900,000 (2021: 800,000) fully paid shares of Rs 10/- gach at
cost, equity held 30.2% (2021: 30.2%) 63,000,000 63,000,000
Value of investment based on net assets as shown in the un-
audited financial statements as at 30 June 2022 {2021 un-
audited)
Accumulated shaie of loss of associate
- based on audited financial statements {63.000.000} (63.000.000)
31 Dec 2021 31 Dac 2020
Summary of financial Information of the Rupees RAupeus
associate is as follows: Audited Audited
Total assots 59,112,779 59.036317
Total lishiklisy 636,472,284 378,746,687
Total pouity (577,358,505 320,710,370
Lows Tor the year 256,649,135] {B.404,927)
Share of loss amounting to Rs. 174.36 million {2021: Rs. 96.85 million) has been restricted to cost of investment in
associate. The principal activity of the Kashf Holding (Private) Limited is making investment in its associated
undertaking. The registered office of the Company is situated at 1-C, Shahrah Nazarea-e-Pakistan, Lahore, Pakistan.
10.2 This represents term finance certificates purchased from Bank Aifsleh Limited on 15 January 2021. The instrurment
carrigs markup of 9.03% per annum with maturity of three years.
2022 2021
Long term loans Note Rupees Rupees
Related party - unsecured
Loan to Kashf Holding (Private) Limited ] 220,239,935 220,239,935
Less: Accumulated impairment 11.2 (220,239,935} (220,230 935
Loan to employees - unsecured 113 1,221,141 217,730
1,221,141 217,730
11.1  This represents a loan given under an agreement to Kashf Holding {Private} Limited (KHL), an associated undertaking.
The loan along with mark-up was receivable in 20 equal quarterly instaliments starting from September 2013. In 2013,
the Company had rescheduled this loan. The loan along with mark-up was receivable in two installments due on 31
December 2015 and 31 December 2019 amounting to Rs. 160.52 million and Rs. 301.98 million respectively. in 2015,
the Company carried out second rescheduling of this van through a resolution in Board of Directors’ meeting dated
20 June 2015. The loan along with mark-up was receivable in two instaliments dus on 31 December 2018 and 31
December 2020 amounting to Rs. 130 million and Rs. 378.72 million respectively. The Board of Directors decided in
the board mesting held on 20 January 2018 to fully impair the loan as no recovery had been received from past §
years.
Kashf Foundation has rescheduled this loan through a third addendum dated 01 July 2018 The loan is payable in 11
annual installments starting from year 2020. The rescheduled loan carries mark-up at the rate of 1 yoar KIBOR plus
2% per annum. Bs. 18 million was received in 2021 from KHL as mentioned in note 38. Total Bs. 41 million has been
received from KHL so far.
2022 2021
11.2  Maovement in accumulated impairment: Note Rupees Rupees
Balance as at 01 July 220,239,935 238,239,935
Less: Reversal due to recovery of logn 38 . us,ouu'mm
Balance s at 30 June 220,239,935 225239:9@b
11.3  These are interest free loans. Impact of discounting of these interest free loans is immaterial,

et
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2022 rited}

Long term micro-credit loan portfolio -unsecured Note Rupees Rupoes
Kashf Schogl Sarmaya 121 44,182,484 48,274,480
Kashf Karobar Karza 12.2 398,559,701
Kashf Muwaishi Karza 12.3 153,851,146 394,657,117
596,593,331 442,931,607
Due within one year:
Kashl School Samaya {35,483,230) 146,169,540
Enshl Karobar Karza {296,687,036) .
Kashi Muwaishi Karza (118,556,562} {393,985, 750|
(450,726,828} (440,155,680}
Less: Impairment allowance on long term 158 {1,857,245} {2,558,955)

micro-credit loans

144,009,258 216,962

12.1  Kashf school sarmaya karza represent micro-credit loans for educational activities with loan amount ranging from Rs
80,000 to Rs 500,000 each. The outstanding balance is repayable along with service charges and life insurance over &
petiod of eighteen months to twenty four months, payable in equal monthly instaliments. The eftective yield on these
foans ranges from 35.60% to 35.94% (2021: 35.60% to 35.94%} pet annurmn.

12.2  Kashf karobar karza represents micro-credit loans for productive/income generating activities. The initial loan amount
is Rs. 30,000 and the maximum loan amount of Rs, 225,000 each. The outstanding balence is repayable along with
service charges and kashf sehatmand zindagi bema over a period of eighteen to twenty four months in equal monthly
instatiments. The effective yield on these loans is from 35.46% to 35.61% (2021: nill) per annum.

123  Kashf muwaishi karza represents micro-credit loans provided to such clients who want to run their daity business at
small scale with an individual loan amount of Rs. 80,000 to Rs. 250,000. The outstanding balance is payable over a
period upto eighteen months to twenty four months, payable in equal monthly instaliments. The effective yield on this
loan ranges from 35.46% to 35.61% {2021:35.46% to 35.61 %) per annum.

124 Impact of discounting of fong term micro-credit loan is considered immaterial.

Financial assats / (liabilities) used for hedging

The Company enters into derivative transactions with scheduled banks in Pakistan to hedge its foreign currency exposures
associated with foreign currency loans. In general, the Company enters into bespoke cross currency swap agreements for
each individual foreign currency loan. The foreign currency losns hedged by the Company are given in note 23.1.2.

The Company measures the fair value of hedging instruments, which are non-exchange-traded, based on price quotes
obtained from the counterpartiesfbroker dealers. The counterparly price quotes reflect the amounts that the Company
expects to receive or pay 1o terminate the contract at the reporting date, taking into account the curfent market conditions
{rate parity, volatility, yield curve).

Derivative Notional
Contracts Fair Values Amounts
Number Rupees uUsoD
30 June 2022
MCB Bank Limited 2 263,479,646 3.776,786
Standard Chartered Bank Limited 10 1,390,396,308 40,100,393
Habib Bank Lirmited 4 933,232,135 18,925,000
2,587,108,089 63,802,185
Less: Current portion {1,319,960,982) (29,673,038)
1,267,147,107 34,128,147
Derivative
Contracts Fair Values Notional Amounts
Mumber Rupees uso
30 June 2021
MCB Bank Limited 4 263,674,078 8,425,357
Faysal Bank Limited 1 {6,957,360) 1.500,000
Standatd Chartered Bank Limited 5 (76,474,893) 23,500,837
Habib Bank Limited 4 (25,873.874) 27,924,909
154,367,851 61,351,103
Less: Current portion (51.112,473) (21,548,948}
103,255,478 39,802,155

e
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The hedge inetfectiveness can arise from:

Differences in the timing of the cash flows of the hedged items and the hedging instruments

Different indexes land accordingly different curves) linked to the hedged risk of the hedged items and hedging
instruments.

The counterparties’ credit risk differently impacting the fair value movements of the hedging instruments end hadged
nems.

Changes to the forecasted amount of cash Hows of hedged iterns and hedging instruments.

Since the hedge is effective during the year, therefore, all the gain on hedging transaction has been recognized in other
comprehensive income.

2022 2021
Long term deposits Note Rupees Rupees
Security deposit:
- against repayment guarantese from Silk Bank 793,500,000 .
- against electricity connection 463,360 463,360
79,963,360 463,360
Micro-credit loan portfolio - unsecured 2022 2021
Rupess Rupeas
Kash! Karobar Karze 1551 14,660,190,223 12,584,621,733
Kashl Bahati Karza 15.2 94,874,995 1,459,368,767
Keshl Easy Loan 153 1,378,047,807 1,215,441,620
Kashl Sahulst Karza 15.4 137,013,506 22,442,033
Kashl Fori Kerza 15.5 137,546,453 5
Kashl Muwaishi Karza 158 2,095,762,280
Kashl School Sarmaya 18.7 85,552,629 -
18,598,9687,993 15,281.874,153
Accrued service charges 257,708,837 189,751,177
Current portion of long term micro-credit ioan portfolio 12 450,726,828 440,155,690
18,307,423,658 15,811,781,020
Less: Accrued service charges disclosed separately in statement of
financial position 17 {257,708,837) {188,761.177)
Less: Impairment allowance on micro-credit loans 15.8 {305,702,333) {478,345,889)
Less: Modification loss on financial assets - (24,936, 344)
18,744,012,488 16,218.745.6810

15.1

15.2

15.3

154

15.5

Kashf karobar karza represents micro-cradit loans for productive/fincome generating activities. The initial loan amount
is Rs. 30,000 and the maximum loan amount cannot exceed Rs. 150,000 each. The vutstanding balance is repayable
along with service charges and kashf sehatmand zindagi bema over a period of twelve months in equal monthly
instaliments. The effective yield on these loans is 35.91% {2021: 35.91%) per annum.

Kashf bahali karza represents micro-credit losns to clients whose businesses were impacted by multiple lockdowns
due to Covid outbreak. It was launched in December 2020 with sunset clause till January 2022. The basic purpose of
the loan is to provide liquidity to those clients whose businesses were illiquid and injection of liquidity help them to
revive their business and livelihood. The loan ranges from Rs. 50,000 to Rs. 1560,000. The outstanding balance is
repayable along with service charges and kashf sehatmand zindagi bema over a period of twelve months in equal
monthly installments. The eftective yield on these loans is 35.81% (2021: 35.91%) per annum.

Kashf easy loan represents micro-credit loans provided to such clients who want to run their business at small scale
or want to fuifil personal tinancial needs at easy terms with @ minimum amount of Rs. 20,000 and maximum amount
is Rs. 25,000. The outstanding balance is payable over a period of twelve months in equal monthly instaliments. The
etfective yield on this loan is 36.74% (2021: 36.74%) per annurm.

Kash{ sahulat karza represents micro-credit loans provided to such clients who have already obtained kashf karcbar
karza tor their domestic use with a minimum amount of Rs. 5,000 and maximum emount is Rs. 7,000. The
outstanding balance is payable over a period of six months in equal monthly instaliments. The efiective yield on this
loan is 36.79% (2021: 36.79%).

Kashf foti karza represents micro-credit loans provided to clients for their domestic use with a fixed amount of Rs.
10,000. The outstanding balance is payable over a period of upto nine months in equal monthly instaliments. The
etfective yield on this lcan is 356.81% 10 60.00% (2021: niff).

iR
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Kashf muwaishi karza reptesents micro-credit loans provided 1o such clients who want to run their dairy business at
small scale with an individual loan amount of Rs. 80,000 to Rs. 150,000. The outstanding balance is payable over
period of six months to twelve months, payable in equal monthly instaliments. The effective yield on this loan
35.72% {2021: 35.50%} per annum.

Kashf school sarmaya Karza represent micro-credit loans for educational activities with loan amount ranging from Rs.
80,000 to Rs. 500,000 each. The outstanding balance is repayable along with service charges and life insurance over a
period of twelve months, payable in equal monthly installments. The etfective vield on this loan is from 37.07%

{2021; 37.07%) per annum.

2022 2021
15.8 Movemant In Impairment allowance Rupeos Rupees
Balance as at 01 July 480,904,844 491,485,767
Impairment loss for the yeat 157,991,347 475,503,118
£38,896,191 966,980,885
Written off against impairment allowance (331.336.613) 4B6.084.041)
Balance as at 30 June 307,559,578 480,904,844
Break up of impairment allowance among non-current and cutrent portion is as follows:
Non-current portion 1,857,245 2,558,955
Cutrent portion 305,702,333 478,345,889
307,559,578 480,904,844
15.9 Number of loans
Considered good 584,936 £02.291
Considered doubtful 29,394 55,749
Less: Loans written off {17,029} 22,103
12,365 33,647
607,301 535 934

15.10

Aging analysis of loan portfolio - (long term and short term)

The Company's main indicator of loan delinquancy is the portfolio-at-risk ratio. Loans are segregsted into classes
dspending on the number of days they are overdus. For each class of loan, the outstanding principal balance of such
loan is divided by the principat balance of the gross loan portfolio for loan loss percentage.

Loans are considered at risk if any payment has fallen due and remained unpaid for more than 1 day. The Company

does not convert mark-up on late payment into principal.

2022 20 2022 2021

Percentage Percentagn Rupess Rupies
Mot due yet 58.07% 05 6a% 18,824,512,343 15.023.090,569
1-29 days 0.31% 0.68% 59,695,097 107,304,511
30-83 days 0.06% 2.45% 11,138,418 385,271,038
90-179 days 0.05% 1.10% 10,071,187 173,621 662
Muore than 180 days 1.51% 0.23% 290,164,269 35,517,963
1m_1_\". 100% 19,195,581,324 15,724,805,760

15.11 Portfolio by segment
2022 2021

Micro enterprise Rupees Rupees
Agriculture and livestock 6.524,032,143 4,238,273,673
Services 2,767,530,653 2,687,232,372
Trading 2.981,762,377 2,477,535,137
Manufacturing 551,564,829 572 BBD 386
11.824,890,002 9,986,921,568

Gengral loan

Domestic 1,621,574,839 1,241,302,290
Schoot 139,765,010 48,379,308
Food production and services 802,185,034 779,801,875
Garments and handicrafts 4.807.166 439 3 668,400 618
7,370,691,322 5,737,884,192
19,195,581,324 15,724,805,760

l@wﬁ?ﬁ
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2022 2021

Kashf Murabaha portfolio Note Rupees Aupoas
Kashf Murabaha receivable 508,391,923 681,535,276
Less: Unearned Murabaha income (156,481.587] {111,516, 286}
16.1 751,910,336 550,019,990
* Less: Impairment allowance on Murabaha 16.2 [25,265,661) (10,679,032}
726,644,675 539,440,958
16.1  Murabaha facility was introduced in 2014 to provide financing facility under [slamic {Shariyah) principles. It represents
the outstanding balance of cost of goods sold under Murabaha agreement. Facility ranges between Rs. 30,000 to Rs.
150,000 each. The outstanding balance is repayable along with profit on Murabaha over a period of twelve months.
Profit is allocated at the rate of 20.8% (2021: 20,8%) on terms of Murabaha agreement.
2022 2021
16.2 Movement in impairment allowance Rupees Rupees
Balance as at 01 July 10,579,032 13,945,122
{mpairment loss for the yeat 25,156,729 11,158,507
35,735,761 25,103,629
Written off against impairment aliowance {10,470,100) (14,524,597}
Balance as at 30 June HEIHEH 10,579,032
16.3 Number of Murabaha's
Considered good 21,781 18,148
Considered doubtful 632 1,395
Less: Clients written off [555) (6761
77 Fii:]
21,838 18,867
164  Aging analysis of Murabaha portfolio
The Campany's main indicator of Murabaha loan delinquency is the portfolio-at-risk ratio. Murabahe are segregated
into classes depending on the number ol days they are overdue. For each class of Murabaha, the outstanding
principal balance of such Murabaha is divided by the principal balance of the gross Murabaha portiolio for Murabaha
loss percentage.
Loans are considered at risk if any payment has fallen due and remained unpaid for more than 1 day. The Company
does not convert profit on tate payment into principal.
2022 2021 2022 2021
Parcentage Percentage Rupees Rupees
Not due yet 99.21% 97.69% 745,962,824 537,330,166
1-28 days 0.52% 0.40% 3,933,202 2,189,346
30-89 days 0.09% 1.16% 681,914 6,368,328
90-178 days 0.04% 0.59% 301,184 3,250,826
Mare than 180 days 0.14% 0.16% 1,031,212 881,324
100% 100% 751,910,336 550,019,990
2022 2021
16,5 Murabaha portfolio by segment Rupees Rupeoes
Micre enterprise
Agricultute and wsiock 135,482,272 109,431,689
Services 129,337,843 106,726,450
Trade 367,387,667 248,000,393
Manulacturing 11,381,141 12,534 804
E47,588,923 477,783,436
Genweral loan
Food production and services 33,356,955 28.313.843
Garments and handicrafts 70,924, 458 43,922,111
104,327,413 72,736,554

w
gm'-m' 751,910,336 560,019,990
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2022 20
Note Rupees Rupeos
Accrued service charges
Micro-credit loans 257,708,837 189,751,177
Murabaha 3,198,478 2,439,189
Less: Impairment allowance (4,357,152) (1.230,019)
256,550,163 190,960,347
Short term investments
Investments classified as at FVTPL
Faysal Income and Growth Fund (144,068 units 15,426,815 14,170,044
{2021: 132,666 units))
NBP Money Market Fund (6,484,637 units( 2021: 68,419,405 62,722,458
5,950,107 units))
83,848,220 765,892,502
Investments at Amortized Cost
Term deposit certificates
- Local currency 700,000,000 700,000,000
- Foreign currency 502,079,262 386,139,608
18.1 1,202,079,262 1,086,139,604
Term finance certificates 18.2 100,000,000 50,000,000
1,302,079,262 1,136,139,609

1,385.925.482

1,213,032,111

18.1 These term deposits carry mark-up ranging from 3.25% to 15.15% {2021: 3.25% to 9%) per annum.
The term deposit certificates with JS Bank and Silk Bank Limited aggregating to Rs. 450 million with
the maturity of one year have been pledged as security against running financing facility availed from
commercial banks.

18.2 These term finance certificates carry markup ranging from 9.93% to 17.42% (2021: 9.60%) per

19

annum having maturity date of 31 December 2022.

2022 2021
Note Rupees Rupees
Advances, deposits, prepayments and
other receivables

Advance to employees against expenses 2,491,369 431,520
Advances to agents against Murabaha 3,755,000 7,510,000
Short term deposits 770,500 670,500
Prepayments 16,572,141 16,178,500
Accrued return on investments and bank deposits 90,274,821 55,124,487
Unearned Murabaha income 16 156,481,587 111,515,286
Advance tax recoverable 436,538,732 343,187,382
Documentation fee receivable - 362,269
Advances to suppliers 9,154,740 5,931,903
Provident fund trust receivables 4,500,787 .
Insurance claims receivables 40,232,895 21,293,889
Commission receivable 23,893,206 16,924,275
QOther receivables 19.1 84,267,199 25,757,247

868,932,977 604,887,258

o
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23

19.1 Other receivable includes:

Takaful contribution
Employee field discrepancies
CMS charges

Insurance Premium
Receivable from third parties

Cash and bank balances

Cash in hand
Balance at banks:
In current accounts - local currency
In saving accounts - local currency
- foreign currency

Note

20.1

2022 2021

Rupees Rupees
13,441,068 8,662,774
6,152,896 2,889,452
4,529 4,529
28,478,185 7,628,405
36,190,521 6,572,087
84,267,199 25,757,247
3,721,551 5,708,696
95,349,626 64.916.191
5,668,484,286 5,402,241,777
601,114,447 450 440,148
6,289,598,733 5,852,681,925
6,368,669,910 5,923,306.812

20.1  Cash with banks in saving accounts carry mark-up at rates ranging from 8.25 % to 15% (2021: 5% to

8.5%) per annum.

Donated funds

Donated funds represent grants utilized for micro lending operations only when all the attached conditions

are complied by the Company.

Loan loss reserve

Loan loss reserve has been created at the rate of 5% of outstanding loan portfolio of the Company. This
reserve is used for the write-off of loans given under Pakistan Micro Finance Investment Company (PMIC)

scheme and is replenished by the Company from general reserve.

Note
Long term financing
Long term loans 23.1
23.1 Long term loans
Local currency loans 23.1.1
Foreign currency loans 23.1.2
Translation loss on foreign currency loans 23.2

Less:

Less:

pQuue

Unamortized transaction cost

Current portion of long term loan

Page 28 of 48

2022 2021
Rupees Rupees

12,514,952,944 10,162,784,549
9,979,959,961 8,708,161,771
10,538,055,724 9,558,715,891
2,560,549,475 130,940,710
23,078,565,160 18,398,818,372
{99,525,061) (164,483,487)
22,979,040,099 18,234,334,885
{10,464,087,155) {8.071,550,336}
12,514,952,944 10.162,784,549
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23.1.2.1

3322

231123

23.1.2.4

23125

23128

23.1.2.7

23128

23.1.2.70

2312

231212

23.1.2.13

23.1.214

23.1.2.15

e

The Company entered into cross currency swap agreement with MCB Bank on 24 April 2018, Loan is translated at the exchange
rate of Rs. 115.85/USD converting the liability of USD 6,000,000 to Rs. §78,250,000 and the intarest rate is converted from 7.37%
per annum to a fixed rate of 13.20%.

The Company entered into cross currency swap agreement with MCB Bank on 21 May 201B. Loan is translated at the exchange
rate of Rs. 115.65/USD converting the liability of USD 5,000,000 to Rs. 578,250,000 and the interest rate is converted trom USD
6M LIBOR plus 4.76% per annum to a fixed rate of 13.30%.

Tha Comgany emiered Mo cross currancy swap agreement with MCB Bank on 25 October 2018. Loan is translated at the
axchangs rate of Rs. 132.3/US0 comerting the Bability of USD 1,580,000 to Rs. 261,954,000 and the interest rate is converted
fooem WSD M LIBOA plus 4,15% per annwm 10 @ varkable rate of 3 KIBOR plus:3.76%.

The Company entered into cross currency swap agreement with MCB Bank on 14 February 2019. Loan is translated at the
exchange rate of Rs. 138.95/USD converting the liability of USD 7,000,000 to Rs. 972,650,000 and the interest rate is converted
from 6.15% per annum to a variable rate of 3M KIBOR plus 3.55%.

The Company entered into €ross currency swap agreement with Faysal Bank on 26 June 2019. Loan is transiated at the exchange
rate of Rs. 162.70/USD converting the liability of USD 3,000,000 to Rs. 488,100,000 and the interest rate is converted from 6.90%
per annum to a variable rate of 6M KIBOR plus 4.10%,

The Company entered into cross currency swap agreement with Stendard Chartered Bank on 01 Novernber 2019. Loan is
translated at the exchange rate of Rs. 155.62/USD converting the liability of USD 10,000,000 to Bs. 1,556,200,000 and the interest
rate is converted from 6 Month LIBOR plus 4% 1o a variable rate of 6M KIBOR plus 2.90%.

The Company entered into Cross currency swap agreement with Standard Chartered Bank on 21 February 2020. Loan is translated
at the exchange rate of Rs. 154.22/USD converting the liability of USD 1,980,000 to Rs. 306,355,600 and the interest rate is
converted from 3 Month LIBOR plus 4.1% to a variable rate of 3M KIBOR plus 2.04%.

The Company entered into cross currency swap agreement with Habib Bank Ltd for first Tranche of Loan on 12 February 2020.
Loan is translated at the exchange rate of Rs. 154.35/USD converting the liability of USD 9,998,930 to Rs. 1,543.489,195.50 and
the interest rate is converted from 6 Month LIBOR pius 4.25% to a variable rate of 6M KIBOR plus 2.16%.

The Company entered into cross currency swap agreement with Standard Chartered Bank for second Tranche of Loan on 09 Aprit
2020. Loan is wranslated at the exchange rate of Rs. 167.25/USD converting the lisbility of USD 6,666,696.66 to Rs.
1,114,988,291.39 and the interest rate is converted from 6 Month LIBOR plus 4.25% 10 a variable rate of 6M KIBOR plus 1.65%.

The Company entered into ¢ross currency swap agreerment with Habib Bank Ltd on 29 July 2020. Loan is translated at the
exchange rate of Rs. 166.40/USD converting the liability of USD 7,425,000 to Rs. 1,235,520,000 and the interest rate is converted
from B Month LIBOR plus 4.15% to a variable rate of 6M KIBOR plus 2.22%.

The Company entered into cross currency swap agreement with Standard Chartered Bank on 09 December 2020. Loan is
translated at the exchange rate of Rs, 160.55/USD converting the lisbility of USD 2,487,560.50 to Rs. 399,377.847.91 and the
interest rate is converted from 6 Month LIBOR plus 4.5% to a variable rate of 8M KIBOR plus 2.7%.

The Corpany entered into cross currency swap agreement with Standard Chantered Bank on 09 December 2020. Loan is
translated at the exchange rate of Rs. 180.55/USD converting the liability of USD 4,950,000 to Rs. 794,722,500 and the interest
rate is converted trom 6 Month LIBOR plus 4.5% to a variable rate of 6M KIBOR plus 2.6%.

The Company entered into cross currency swap agreement with Habib Bank Ltd for first tranche of Loan on 18 February 2021,
Loan is translated at the exchange rate of Rs. 15B.9/USD converting the lability of USD 5,000,000 to Rs. 794,500,000 and the
interost rate is converted from 6 Month LIBCR plus 4.25% to a variable rate of 6M KIBOR plus 3.64%.

The Company entered into cross currency swap agreement with Standard Chartered Bank tor second tranche of Loan on 15 July
2021 Loan is translated at the exchange rate of Rs. 159.25/USD converting the liability of USD 5,000,000 to Rs. 796,250,000 and
the interest rate is converted from 6 Month LIBOR plus 4.25% to a fixed rate of 11.05%

The Company entered into Cross cumoncy Swap agreamant with Habsh Bank Ltd for first tranche of loan on 25 June 2021. Loan is
translated at the exchange rate of Rs. 157.B5USD conwerting tha fiability of USD 7,499,965 to Rs. 1,182,369,482.25 and the
interest rate is converted from & Month LIBOR 1o @ fwed rate of 7.50%.

The Company entered into cross currency swap agreement with Standard Chartered Bank for second tranche of loan on 21
Decemnber 2021. Loan is translated at the exchange rate of Rs. 178/USD converting the liability of USD 6,000,000 to Rs.
1,068,000,000 and the interest rate is converted from B Month LIBOR plus 4.25% 1o a variable rate of 6 month KIBOR plus
3.65%.

The Company entered into ¢ross currency swap agreement with Standard Chartered Bank on 22 December 2021, Loan is
translated at the exchange rate of Rs. 178.15/USD convoerting the liability of USD 5,488,980 to Rs. 979,821,437 and the interest
rate is converted from 8 Month LIBOR plus 4.15% 1o a variable rate of 6M KIBOR plus 3.556%.

The Company entered into cross currency swap agreement with Standard Chartered Bank for first tranche of loan on 22
December 2021. Loan is translated at the exchange rate of Rs. 178.15/USD converting the Jiability ot USD 5,000,000 to Rs,
890,750,000 and the interest rate is converted from 6 Month LIBOR plus 4.15% to a varigble rate of 6 month KIBOR plus 3.45%.

The Company entered into cross currency swap agreement with Standard Chartered Bank for second tranche of loan on 27 April
2022. Loan is translated at the exchange rate of Rs. 185.75/USD converting the liability of USD 5,000,000 to Rs. 928,750,000 and
the interest rate is converted from 6 Month LIBOR plus 4.15% to a variable rate of 6 month KIBOR plus 4.10%.

Transiation loss on foreign currency loans

Foreign cutrency loans have been transiated to Pakistan Rupees using spot rate as at the reporting date.
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25

Lease liabilities

The effective interest rate used as the discounting factor (i.e. incremental borrowing rate) is 15.4256%.

The amount of future payments and the period during which they will become due are:

Period ending 30 June

2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027

Less: Future finance charges

Less: Current maturity of long term lease liability

241

2022 2021
Rupees Rupees
- 84,458,668
86,432,306 52,774,903
56,191,588 43,823,482
11,918,222 2,253,273
930,152 574,782
147,590 -
155,619,858 223,885,108
{16,404,887) (26,563,224)
139,214,971 197,321,884
{77.981,155) (68,511,543}
61,233,816 128,810,341

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movement during the year:

Note

Balance as at 01 July
Additions during the year
Markup on lease liabilities

Less: Lease rentals paid
Less: Lease termination
Balance as at 30 June

Short term borrowings

Short term running finance - secured 25.1

KIVA loan - foreign currency loan - unsecured

25.1

25.2

yan?

25.2

2022 2021
Rupees Rupees
197,321,884 200,252,110
42,919,322 56,574,039
17,396,142 19,158,457
257,637,348 275,984,606
{92,290,873) (78.662,722]
[26,131,504) -
139,214,971 197,321,884
348,452,459 2
43,694,023 43,415,547
392,146,482 43,415,547

This represents utilized amount of short term running finance facilities under mark-up
arrangements available from MCB aggregating to Rs. 500 million (2021: Rs. 500 mitlion). Mark-
up is payable quarterly at the rate of 3 months KIBOR plus 45 bps per annum (2021: 3 months
KIBOR plus 45 bps per annum). This is secured against lien on term deposit certificate of Rs.
400 million of JS Bank (2021: secured against lien on term deposit certificate of Rs. 300 million
of JS Bank) .This facility is expiring on 28 February 2023.

This represents interest free [oan obtained from KIVA Micro funds, a California based non-profit,
public benefit corporation. KIVA operates a web based business that provides microfinance
loans to individuals and groups of devsloping countries through local lenders of those countries.
The Company is registered under KIVA and is solely responsible for collection of loans from

borrowers and repayment to KIVA.
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2022 2023
27 Accrued mark-up Note Rupees Rupeos
Markup on:
= long tenm loans 600,473,950 412,672,334
- shart tenm borrowings 235,559 4,626,282
600,709,509 417.188.718
28 Trade and other payables
Accrued expenses 142,321,837 49,930,104
Provident fund payable 281 - y
insurance premium payable 91,037,186 76,180,323
Deferred Murabaha income 156,481,687 111,515,260
Claims payable 12,624,481 V6,515 086
Cash Management Systerm (CMS) chaiges payable 29,933,417 25,451,029
Siaff Bonus payable 206,907,326 BA.626.083
Other liabilities 120,363,865 73,545,792
758883893 _ 439763703
28.1 Provident fund:
The Company operates funded contributory provident fund scherne for all its permanent and eligible employees. The
following information is based on the un-audited financial statements of the provident fund as at 30 June 2022:
{Un-audited) Audited
2022 2021
Note Rupees Rupees
Size of the fund - total assets 1,133,391,307 882,306 881
Cost of investments made 28.2 759,353,574 706,160,432
Percentage of investments - {% of total assets) 67.00% 71.89%
Fair value of investments made 768,267,555 708,353,574
28.2 The break-up of invest ts is as foll
2022 2021
Rupees % Rupees %
Ternm deposst receipis 650,000,000 B5.60% 630,000,000 89.21%
Belutual lunds 58,523,574 12.97% 65,330,432 9.25%
Termn finance certificate 10,830,000 1.43% 10.830,000 1.53%
?Ez.ﬁsﬂ- 100% 706,160,432 100%:

The investments out of the provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of Section 218 of the
Companies Act, 2017 and the rules formulated for this purpose.

29 Contingencies and commitments

There were no significant contingencies and commitments as at 30 June 2022 {2021; Nil)

30 Mark-up and other charges on micro-
credit loan portfolio

Mark-up charges on:

- Kashf Karobar Karza

- Kashf Zariye Xarza

- Kashf School Sarmaya

- Kashf Easy Loan

- Kashf Muwaishi Karza

- Kashf Sshulat Karza

- Kashf Bahali Karza

- Kashf Fori Karza
Reversal of modification loss
Loan documentstien fees
Commission on insurance

OV

2022 2021

Rupees Rupees
5,013,607,039 3,825 554,753
s 0,947
29,066,133 8,635,266
516,870,214 267,901 583
417,920,277 111,575,310
43,573,245 569,134
263,621,036 189,912,245
25,772,001 -
- 24,945,873 350,508,275
. 32,329
73,455,052 84,659.441
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2022 2021
Grant income Note Rupees Rupus
Grant related to projects 26 218,074,798 63,919,786
Amortization of grant related to assets 12,709,667 3830274
Service level agreement 1,092,740 90,738
229,877,205 67,849,808
Return on i tments and bank deposits
Return on term deposit receipts
- Local 66,802,328 129,650,047
- Foreign 14,270,130 13.317.700
B1.072.458 142976747
Return on term finance certificates 24,132,752 12,225,242
Return on bank deposits
- Local 540,010,332 478,080, 506
- Foreign 1,375,192 329,574
541,385,524 478,300,080
646,590,734 633,592,069
Programme cost
Salsries, wages and benefits 1.594,115,633 1,373,984,015
Travel and conveyance 171,677,494 146,970,856
Insurance 222,263,170 167,156,367
Office rent - 4,893,019
Seminar, workshop, resesich and staff training expenses 12,845,222 387, N6
Entertainment 48,955,400 33,068,033
Printing and stationery 50,425,767 18,623,793
Communication 23,682,885 23,964,202
Legal and professional charges 56,450,812 70,892,265
Depreciation - owned assets 31,814,314 45,461,275
Depreciation - right of use assets 71,985,383 62,140,916
Utilities 23,960,623 17,740,006
Repair and maintenarice 10,322,385 7,752,665
Office supplies 19,786,687 9,679,195
Security 5,606,451 4,314,895
2343892226 1991613138
Grant expenses
Salaries, wages and benefits 97,081,043 42,389,387
Travel and conveyance 18,074,501 2,783 B3g
insutance 558,707 117,880
Office rent 378,000 2,247,300
Seminar, workshop, research and stalf training exgenses 13,379,170 A.963, 240
Printing and stationery 2,823,381 1,377 5685
Communication 3,331,669 1,046,609
Depreciation - owned assets 11,888,083 3,770,809
Amortization 821,584 6B 465
Amortization - prepayments 1,092,740 .
Utilities 2,100,515 1,934,118
Repair and maintenance 1,375,000 1,100,582
Office supplies 2,254,915 2513129
Media campaign 66,269,638 2,870,600
Corona relief fund 15,793,380 158,780
Miscellaneous 1,179,206 449, 564
Loss on disposal of operating fixed assets 1,475,663 .
229,877,205 67,849,808
Finance cost
Mark-up on long term loans 2,317,966,061 1,787, 048,754
Mark-up on short term borrowings 808,202 4874162
Matkup on lease liabilities 241 12,396,142 23,205,623
Bank and other charges 228,534,868 112,711,434
Amortization of transaction costs of long term loans 99,327,589 93,882,564
2,664,032,863 2,021,628 557

pad
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Management and administrative expenses

Salaries, wages and benefits
Travel and conveyance
Insurance

Seminar, workshop, research and staff training expenses
Enterainmant

Printing and stationery
Communication

Legal and professional charges
Depreciation - owned assets
Utilities

Repair and maintenance

Oifice supplies

Security

Amoititon

Audiod’s femuneration
Advertisgrmint

Miscallaneous

Loss on lessed vehicles

36.1 Shariah Advisor Remuneration

Note

362

2022 2029
Rupees Rupees
346,700,231 282,275,927

17,650,608 12,586,732

975,267 871,710
5,087,382 2,705,458
9,063,615 6,162,081
1,622,191 658,060
5,298,401 5,773.212
8,799,846 6,465,230

44,822,254 46,788,548

8,031,569 16,668,871
12,987,218 15,021,040
2,919,462 2,794,863

562,338 613,845
4,682,807 3,626,587
2,400,000 2,060,000
7,615,178 27,144,471

34,971,851 1,452,058

- 324,408
515,180,219 -134,521 250

Kashf foundation has appointed Al Hamd Shariah Advisary Services {Private) Limited as its Shariah advisor for the review of
the mechanism of Islamic portfclio with efiect from 07 June 2021 with the remuneration of Rs. 42,500 per month {2021:

42,500 per month}.

36.2 Auditors’ remuneration

Statutory audit fee
Qut of pocket expenses

Other expenses

Donations
Foreign exchange loss - net
Others

Other income

income from financial assets:
Write off recovered
Liabilities written back
Foreign exchange gain - net
Fair value gain on mutus! funds
Fair value gain on the investment property
Repayment of loan from associate
Dividend incorme

income from assets other than financial assets:
income from rent
Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets
Gain on termination of lease
Miscellangous income

Note

2022 2021
Rupees Rupees
2,100,000 1,995,000
300,000 65,000
Z&M 2,060,003
164,750 242,928
q 28,183,114
1,214,630 .
1,379,380 m
13,364,189 B0V H28
3,946,068 40,317,980
248,277,637
100,637 109,258
15,273,500 5,846,850
. TE.000.000
8,040,784 1575882
14,420,445 13,813,898
8,491,568 6,039,091
8,259,141 .
24,816,980 9.603.177
345,990,949 98,013,964

38.1 This amount includes rental income derived from investment property amounting to Rs. 4.9 million (2021: Rs. 6.3 million).

Remuneration of chief executive, directors and executives

Chief Executive Officer Executives

2022 2021 2022 2021
Manpgerial remuneration 25,796,832 23,885,952 294,905,023 248,005,020
Bonus 4,298,472 - 46,502,552 -
Provident Fund contribution 1,687,944 1,592,397 19,249,187 16,242,374
Allowances and others 8,701,103 8,266,545 50,366,027 46,606,974

E 485,351 33,744,894 411,022,795 310.854.368
Number 1 1 129 m
39.1 Total number of directors of the Company as at 30 June 2022 were 10 {2021: 10). None of the director is paid any

remuneration.

Page 39 of 49



40

LA

Number of employees

The Company has employed following number of persons including permanent and contractual staff:

As at 30 June
Average number of employees

Ratios

Portfolio at risk

Adjusted return on assets

Adjusted return on equity

Operational self-sufficiency

Financial self-sufficiency

Surplus as a percentage of total receipts

Management and administrative expenses
as percentage of total receipts

Active loan:

- as at 30 June
Active clients:

- as at 30 June

- disbursements during the year

41.1  Portfolio at risk

Note

411
41.2
41.3
M4
415
41.6

41.7

15.9 & 163

41.8

2022 2021
Numbers Numbers
3,384 3!1 15
3,250 3,163
2022 2021
Percentage Percentage
1.89% 4 ‘3926
6.75% 3.10%
30,897 15.08%
734.00% T75.00%
105,447 704.66%
ﬁsﬁ. 13.26%
6.54% 7.48%
2022 2021
Numbers Numbers
629,139 554.805
592,460 550,080
692.463 547.617

The value of all outstanding loans that have one or more instaliments of principal overdue for more than 1 day. This item
includes the entire unpaid principal balance, intluding both overdue and future installments, but not accrued interest.

41.2 Adjusted return on assets

Adjusted return on assets {"ROA") is calculated using adjusted earnings in the numerator for the last twelve months and

using average totaf assets in the denominstor.

41.3 Adjusted return on equity

This calculates the rate of return of the Company on the average equity for the period. Adjusted return on equity ("ROE"
is calculsted using adjusted earnings in the numerator for the last twelve months and using average equity in the

denominator.

41.4 Operational seif-sufficiency

Measures how well the Company covers its costs through operating revenues. It is calculated using operating income as
numerator and denominator includes opersting expense, financial expense and loan-loss provision expense are also

included in this celculation, as they are normal (and significant) cost of operating.

415 Financial self-sufficiency

This ratio measures how well the Company covers its costs, taking into account a certain adjustments to operating
expenses. The purpose of these adjustments is to model how well the Company could cover its costs if its operations
that are unsubsidized and it was funding its expansion with commercial-cost liabilities. It is calculated in the same
manner as operational self-sutficiency except the adjusiment to the operating expenses for operations of the entity that
are unsubsidized and it was funding its expansion with commercial cost lisbilities along with the impact of inflation.

41.6 Surplus as a percentage of total receipts

This ratio represents the proportion of surplus against gross income of the Company. This measures how well the
Company is managing its expenses over total receipts. This is calculated using surplus for the year as numerator and
denominator includes total receipts for the year.

41.7 Management and administrative expenses as a percentage of total receipts

This ratio represents the proportion the management and admin expenses against gross income of the Company. This is
calculated using the management and admin expenses for the year as numerator and denominator includes gross

income for the year.

41.8 Disbursements during the year

The Company has disbursed micro-credit loan amounting to Rs. 34.45 billion (2021: Rs. 26.86 billion) during the year.

wposs
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Risk management of financiel instruments

The Company's overall risk management policy focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential
adverse elfects on the Company's financial performance. The Company has exposure to following risks from its use of financial

instruments:
- Credit risk
- Liguidity risk
- Market risk
42.1 Risk management framewaork

4221

42.2.2

The Board of Directors have the overall responsibility for establishrment and over sight of the Company's risk management
framework. The executive management team is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company's risk management
policies. The team regularly meets and any changes and compliance issues are reported to the Board of Directors through the
audit committes.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other party to
incur a finencial loss, without taking into account the fair vaiue of any collateral. Concentration of credit risk arises when a
number of counter parties are engaged in similar business activities or have simitar econormic features that would cause their
ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economics, political or other conditions.
Concentrations of credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company's performance to developrments affecting
particular industry.

Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure 1o credit risk at the
reporting date was as follows:

2022 201
Rupees Rupees
Long term investments 180,515,000 180,515,000
Short term investments 1,385,925,482 1,213,032,111
Long term loans 1,221,141 217,730
Long term deposits 79,963,360 463,360
Bank balances 6,364,948,359 5,917,598,116
Financial assets used for hedging 2,587,108,089 154,367,951
Micro-credit loan portfolio 18,888,021,746 15,218,962,572
Kasht Murabaha portfolio 726,644,675 539,440,958
Accrued Service charges 256,650,163 190,960,347
Advances, deposits and other receivable 243,939,408 119,770,398

30,714,837,423 23,535,328,543

Concentration risk

Concentration of credit risk exists when the changes in economic or industry factors similarly affect groups of counterparties
whose aggregate credit exposure is significant in relation to the Company's total credit exposure. The Company's portfolio of
financial assets is broadly diversified and all other transactions are entered into with credit-worthy counterparties there-by
mitigating any significant concentrations of credit risk.

2022 20
Rupees Rupees
Banking companies and financial institutions 10,598,681,431 7,456,104 268
Micro-credit loan and murabaha porticlio 19,871,216,584 16,949 363, 877
Othets 243,939,408 119,770,308

30,714,837.423 73.535.328. 543
Balances with banking companies

The Company has balances and investments with banks amounting to Rs. 7,847 million as at 30 June 2022. These are held
with banks and financial institutions counterparties, which ate rated A to AAA+, based on the credit ratings from rating
agencies.

Impairment on these financial assets has been measured on a 12 months expected loss basis and reflects short term
maturities of the exposure. The company considers that these balances has low credit risk based on the external ratings of the
counterparties.

12 month probability of default are based on historical data supplied by VIS rating agency for each credit rating. Loss given
defautt (LGD} parameters generally reflects assumed recovery rates based on recovery rates assumed in Basel Guidelines for
unsecured exposures,

2022 2021
Rupees Rupees
Bank balonces 6,364,848,359 5.917,588,116
Shon term investments 1,302,079,262 1.136,129,609
Long tarm invagtmants 180,515,000 180,615,000

7,847,542,621 7.234,252,725

g
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Credit quality of Investments and bank balances

The credit quatity of major financial asset that are neither past due nor impaired can be sssessed by reference to externat credit ratings (i
availabig) or to historical inf, ion about party detault rate:

Hating 2022 2027
Mama of Bank Agancy Short tarm Loing term Aupess Hupoes
MCB Bank Lid PACRA Als AAA 136,671,430 172,578,365
Habib Bank Ltd Vis Al+ ASA 56,475,457 29,560,438
Faysal Bank Ltd BACAA Al AA 22,897,154 15,553,698
Allied Bank Ltd PACRA, Al+ AAA 11,278,610 8,722,118
The Bank of Punjab PACHA Al+ AA+ 76,909,933 16,868,806
Bank Al-Habib Ltd PACRA Al+ AAA 31,781518 18,983,399
Sitk Bank Lid vis A2 A 6,311,000,291 5,055,376.128
Soneri Bank Lid PACAA Al+ AA- 214,682,965 1,037,163.079
JS Benk Ltd PFACHA A+ AA- 472,181,926 350,951,634
Standsrd Chartered Bank Lid PACRA Al+ AAA 2,181,049 21,111,603
Askari Bank Ltd PACRA Als A+ 2,755,690 1,693,980
Apna Microfinance Bank Lid AT A3 2321228 1,720,780 7,154,628
Meezan Benk Lid Wis Als AAA 8,155 7,852
Mohbitink Microfinence Bank Lid PACRA Al A 14,080,375 115,041,501
NRSP Microfinance Bank Lid PACRA Al A 86,446,784 86,166,762
Sindh Bank tLid s Al Ar 27,095,176 45,485,181
United Bank Ltd WVis Als AAA 37,006,022 23,733,928
Khushali Mittofinance Bank Lig Wis Al A 8,191,968 13,613,738
Bank Aifaish PACAA Alx AA+ 183,949,746 181,424, /63
National Bank of Pakistan PACHA Al+ ADA 963,730 188,343
Bankislami Pakistan Ltd FACRA Al A+ 48,872 805 12,8491
State Bank of Pekistan - - - 3,18
Faysal income & Growth Fund BACRA - Alf) 15,426,815 14,170,044
NBP Financial Sector Income Fund PACRA - A+lf) 68,419,405 82,722,458
U Micro Finence Bank Al A 72,258,594 25,793,296
Telenor microfinance Bank Ltd. PATRA Al A 30,118,302 8,038,297
Central Depository Company - - - 5, 756
7,.831,388,8417 7,311,145, 717

The Company has not tecognized an impairment aliowance on investments classified at amortized cost and bank balances during the yesr
ended 30 June 2022, as the impact was immaterial,

Micro-cradit loan and Murabsha portfolio

Tt estirrwtion ol erethl exposuie I fisk mansgement purposes s cornglea and teauires the use of models, as the exposure varies for the
different produtt partlolics with changes in maret condilionms, axpectod cesh flows and the passage of time. The assessment of cradit risk of
a partiobo of sssets ondeds luther estimotions es to the kkohhood ol delaults occurring, of the associsted loss rstios and of default
correlutions with forwand looling feciors. The Compaery messures crodit risk using Probedsliny of Delault (PD), Exposure at Default {EAD) and
Loss Ghven Dotaut (LGDY by prosiuct typa. This |5 simils fo the soproach used lof the purposes of measuring ECL under IFRS 8.

The Company determines ECL for loan portlolio using general spproach. The expected credit losses on loan portiolio assets are determined
using probabilistic estirnation of future expected cash Hows, adjusted for tactors that sre specific 1o the loan portfolios and an assessment of
both the current as well s the forecast direstion of conditions at the reporting date.

Expestod Credif Loss Measurament

When determining whether the fisk of default on 8 financial instrument hes incressed significantly since initial recognition, the Company
considers reasonable and supportable information. The objective of the assassment is to identify whether a significant increase in credit risk
has occurred for an exposure by cornparing:

- The remaining lifetme PD as a1 the reporting date;
- The remaining fifetime PD for this point in time that wes estimated at the time of intial recognition of the exposure ladjusted whete
relevant for changes in prepayment sxpectations).

The Compsny uses three criteris for determining whether there has been e significant increase in credit risk:

= Quentiative test besed on movernent in days past due; and
- Forbearance / restructuring status

Muitiple economic scenarios form the basis of determining the PD at initial recognition and at subsequent reporting dates. Different
- economit scenarios will lsad to a dilferent PD. Forwardiooking information comprises of expected inflation projections

Drefinition of defaull

Critical to the determination of ECL is the definition of default. The definition of defeult is used in measuring the amount of ECL and in the
deterrination of whether the loss ellowance is based on 12-month or lifetime ECL, as defsult is 8 component of the probability of default (PD}
which affects both the measurement of ECLs and the identification of a significant increase in credit risk.

The Company considers the foliowing as constituting an event of default;

- The contract is past due more than 80 deys; or
The credit obligations reflected in the contract is uniikely 1o be paid 10 the Company such as deceasad borrowers.

Weite-off

When periodic collective histonical recovery analysis indicates thet the Company does not expect significsnt additional recoveries after certain
months in default (“MID"), it is the policy of the Company to write-off loans on a collective basis.

Amaunts of financial assets thet were written off during the reporting period amounted to Bs. 352.8 million (2021: Rs. 500.6 million).
!
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Maagurarment of ECL

The key inputs inte the measurement of ECL are the term structure of the following variables:
~Prabaiimy of cuteult IFOL

Loss given detoul) [LGD),

Exposure Bl delault [EALN

These parameters are generslly derived feom it ily developed statistical models and other historice! dats.

Other financial assats

Long term toans, deposits, and other receivables are mostly due from employees and finenciel institutions. The Company has assessed based
oh historical expetience, that the expected credit loss assoclated with these financial assets is generally triviel. There are reasonable grounds
to believe that these amounts wilt be recovered with in 8 period of six months. Hence, no additions! allowance has been recognized in these
tingricial statements.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity fisk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that are settied by
delivering cash or other finangist psset or such: obligations which will bave 1o be settled in 2 manner unfavorable to the Company. Liquidity risk
srises because of the possibility that the Company could be required to pey its ligbilities earlier than expected or difficulty in raising funds to
meet commitments associated with financial liabilities as they falt due. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, 8s for as
possible that it will always heve sufficient liquidity to meet its lisbilities when due under both normal and stressed conditions. The following
are the remaining contractusl maturities of tinancial liabilities, Including interest payments:

2022
Carrying Contractual Up to ane year Morse than
amount Cash llows. or lass one year
Risppoes
Long term francing 23,078 565,160 23,078,565,160 10,464,087,155 12,814,478,005
Shot | tenm Bomdwang 197,148,482 392,148,482 392,146,482 -
Accried matk-up oh bofrowings ©00.709,505 600,709,503 600,709,509 .
Tiage and ather payebies 603,188,112 603,188,112 603,188,112 -
Lease kpbidics 139,214,971 155,619,858 86.432.306 69,187.552
24,813,824,234 24,830,223,121 12,146,563,564 12,683,665,557
2021
Carrying Contraciugl Up to one year More than
armount LCash tiows of less one year
Rupess s,
Long term finsncing 18 I EIE T2 18,398,818,372 8,071,550,336 10,327,266,036
Short term borrowing 3,416 647 43,415,547 43,415,847 =
Accrued mark-up on borrowings A7 188, 18 417,188,716 417,198,718 -
Trade and other payables N6 171.308 216,171,305 216,171,305 -
Lesse liabilitigs 197,331,884 223,885,108 84,458,668 139,426,440
18,272 028 B 19,289,489,048 8,832,794 672 10,466,694,476

e e ey, e Sy pmee S S S R
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the value or cash Hlows of the financial instrument may fluctuste s a result of changes in market interest rates or
the market prices due 10 a change in credit rating of the issuer or the instrurnent, change in market sentiments, spaculative activities, supply
and demand of sccurities and hquidity in the market. The objective of the market risk rmanagement is to manage and control markel nsk
exposures with acceptable parameters, while oplimizing return. The Company is exposed {o interest rate risk and currency fisk only.

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the lair value of 8 financial instrument will fluctuate due 1o change in foreign exchange rates. Foreign currency
risk srises mainly where receivables and payables exist as 8 resuit of transactions with foreign undertakings. The Company is exposed to
currency risk 1o the extent that there is a mismatch between the currencies in which borrowings are denominated and she respective
functional cutrency of the Company. The functional currency of the Company is Pak Rupee. The currencies in which these transactions sre
primarily denominated are US doliars.

Empasure to currancy. risk

The surmmaty quantitstive dete about the Company's exposure to currency fisk as reported to the managament of the Company is as follows:

2022 2021
uso uson
Limbeiiftivs
Bonowengs 371,257 440,128
Mi-u geciusd On Bormowangs 9,749 5,993
381.008 446,122
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42.4.3

Exchange retes sppiied during the year

Thé following significant exchange rates have been applied during the yeat:

Avarage rate for the year Reporting date rate
2022 2021 2022 2027
USD o FEH 178.01 162.92 204.85 157.54

Sensithily anmlysis:

At reporting date, it the PKR had strengthened by 10% basis points against the foreign currencies with ail other varistles heid constant,
surplus for the year would have been lower by the amount shown below, mainly as a result of net foreign exchange gain on transtation of
foreign currency loans and foreign curtency bank account.

2022 202%
Effect on sirplus Rupees Rupees
WS Dt 6,782,288 7,268,220

The weakening of the PKR against foreign currency would have had an equal but opposiie impact on the surplus.

The sensitivity analysis grepered is not necessarily indicative of the effects on surplus for the year and assets/ liabilities of the Company
interast rate risk

Interest rate tisk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuste b of chenges in market

interest rates. Majority of the interest rate exposure afises on bank deposits, short term borrowings end long term finencing. The interest rate
profile of the Cornpany’s interest-besring financial instruments at the reporting date was as undet:

Effective rate Carrying amount
2022 2021 2022 2021
Fixwd rate fostourmants % % Rupees Rupees
Financial assets:
Shoet term iivveatment 3.25%t0 1742 % 3.25% 109.6 % 1.302,079,262 1.136,139,608
Long term irmeesirmand 9.03% 2.03% 180,515,000 180,515,000
Micro-cred loan pofiiclio 34% to 60% 34% 10 37.08% 18,888,021,746 15,218,862,572
—__20,370,616,008 __ 16535612181
Firmncal lebdites:
Lang torm financing:
FMO-Heaged - 13130% - 144, 582 500
Hroparco-Hooged 1320% 13.20% 82,607,143 2a7.821,809
Bani Allsls® Lid 100% 300% 40,028,175 200,140,873
Hank, Alfsian Lid 100% 3.00% 39,457,715 1497 s s
cDC 11.75% e 708,425,000 1, VRS 3, o
Fnnilund 11.05% 637,000,000 e
1,508,518,033 1.972,188.373
Fleating rete Instruments
Effective rate Carrying
2022 2021 2022 2021
% % Rupaes Hupees
Fnanual keoiktios:
Bangwanngs 8.66% 10 19.17% 9.22% 10 11.74% 21,570,047,127 16,426,629,999

21,570,047,127 __ 16,476,629.995

Cash flow sensitivity analysls for variabla rate Instryments

A change of 100 basis points in interest sates 8t the reporting date would have increased / (decreased) surplus for the ysar by the amounts
shown below. This analysis assumes that alf other varinbles, in particular foreign currency rates, remain consiant. The enelysis is performed an
the same basis for 2022.

100 bps
Cash flow seositivity anelysis on variable rete Nospcial Debilitles Increase Decroase
Rupees Rupees
As at June 30, 2022 216,700,421 (215,700,471}
As at June 30, 2021 184,266,299 (164,266,298)
22050

The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the eflects on surplus for the year and assets / ligbilities of the Comnpany.
Other price risk

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices
(other than those atising from interest rate risk or cutrency risk). The financial instrument held by the Company does not trade on the stock

exchange and has therefore, no correlation with the equity index of the stock exchange. Therefore, it is not possible to measure the impact of
the change in equity index on the Company's surplus lor the period,

L
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Related party transactions

The Company's related parties comprises of directors, key management personnel, associated
companies, company in which directors are interested and employee retirement fund. Amount due from
and to related parties are shown in respective notes. Remuneration of key management personnel is
disclosed in note 39. Transactions with related parties during the year other than those which have been
disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements are as follows;

Name of parties and basis of

relationship with the Company Nature of transaction 2022 2021

Rupees Rupees
Kashf foundation provident fund trust Contribution 83,114,634 76,877,130
Kashf Holdings (Private) Limited Repayment of loan - 18,000,000
- associated company instaliment

Subsequent events

Subsequent to the year end due to the heavy rain fall, flood crisis has affected the clientele of Sindh and
Upper Punjab region of the Company. The crisis is expected to impact the repayment behavior of the
clients which directly relates to the recovery percentage of the Company. The total amount of impact is
not yet determinable. The management is in the process to clearly analyze the clients who are seriously
touched by this crisis and to determine the impact on the Company's recovery percentage and loan
portfolio.

Reclassification

Corresponding figures have been re-classified and re-arranged, wherever necessary, for the purpose of
comparison and fair presentation, however no significant reclassification has been made.

Date of authorization for issue

These financial statements were authorized for issue on &3 Cef- 20a3 by the Board of Directors of the

Company.&g

Chief EXecutive Officer

Director

Page 49 of 49



ALHAMD SHARIAH ADVISORY SERVICES

PVT) LIMITED

&J{f/dj?’bil 2 ;‘;U(r

2022 yi-lz

e Yo FpE bl £ 2022 S 230 6 5 p 3 I LIS LR LA
st itaue it e F Ui ped

(LI

2y fw&/&“ﬁﬂ-ugd/(n/'gyxf‘a}yufﬂ//f/%.iﬁf‘%uu: KPK &2 ks
-w&ﬁuui‘fzj_ﬁé ;,ig,u;oﬁ/ﬁ‘/uﬁ{y"/”(ﬁ g

: ﬁ?ﬁv@

s 3 Fe S s S L G Y Fan o Lo e J2T
ezt S L Loz guiSuk I U S et L S
:‘};6}‘

Sl L1, E 1S S e COVERAGE 2 P L& JFS i 35 Fasb s
WU F e COVERAGES = o1 5 ¥

ol

B L L Sal §61S e dtd 5 p GE L d o LT KPR B e 4365
LB Rl Mo Qb s T b 9SS e B e UES AL Y5
e BBk s ral

@?& &l

S s ST £
S J’«’:J(m;’l/?)/:/d//’r;zl,g}h

Address: Flat 503, 8" Floor Ibrahim Residency, C.P & Berar Society, Karachi.
@ +923222671867 | www.alhamdshariahadvisory.com | X info@alhamdshariahadvisory.com
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Annual Shariah Advisor’s Report

For the period ended June 30, 2022

We reviewed the affairs of the KASHF MURABAHA offered by KASHF FOUNDATION in Khyber
Pakhtunkhwa province for the year ended June 30, 2022.

Based on our review, the following were the major activities/developments in respect of Sha-
riah that took place during this period:

FRESH DISBURSEMENTS:

Kashf Foundation has disbursed Murabaha financing facilities to the different clients in KPK.
We confirm that approved documents of Murabaha were used in the execution of the Mura-
baha transactions.

BANK ACCOUNTS:

For operational and disbursement purposes, the Kashf Foundation is operating the current
account maintained with a conventional bank. We recommend that all Murabaha accounts
should be maintained with Islamic banks or Islamic windows of conventional banks.

TAKAFUL:

For risk mitigation, Kashf Foundation effectively adopted and maintained Takaful coverage(s)
with Takaful companies and did not obtain any coverage(s) from conventional insurance com-
panies.

CONCLUSION:

The Management of Kashf Foundation has effectively shown its sincerity to comply with Sha-
riah Rulings in its true spirit for KASHF MURABAHA offered in KPK. May Almighty grant us
success in this assignment help us at every step, and keep us away from every hindrance and
difficulty.

] &

Mufti Muhammad Ibrahim Essa Mufti Ubaid ur Rahman Zubairi
CEO & Director Director

Alhamd Shariah Advisory Services (Pvt.) Limited

September 21, 2022

Address: Flat 503, 8™ Floor Ibrahim Residency, C.P & Berar Society, Karachi.
® +92 3222671867 | B www.alhamdshariahadvisory.com | X info@alhamdshariahadvisory.com
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